
    BUCKLEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA
         April 12, 2016 

         Multi-Purpose Center, 811 Main Street 
City Council Meeting 

            Opening 7:00 P.M. 

Call to Order  Next Ordinance #10-16 
Pledge of Allegiance  Next Resolution #16-06 
Roll Call of Council Members Next Agenda Bill #AB16-048 

Oath of Office – Officer Collin Burnham 

A. Citizen Participation

Time Limit of Three Minutes (Must sign up at City Hall by Wednesday prior to the Council Meeting) 

B. Staff Reports

C. Main Agenda

1. Public Hearing:  Assumption of Rights, Powers, Functions & Obligations of TBD       Pg  8
2. ORD No. ___-16: Assuming Rights, Powers, Functions & Obligations of TBD  Pg 10
3. ORD No. ___-16: Astound Broadband, LLC Franchise Agreement Pg 19 
4. Agreement - TSA Between Buckley & Carbonado for WWTP Lab Services    Pg 62
5. Bid Award - Phase II of the SR410 Realignment Project         Pg 68
6. Temporary Waiver of Trailer Regulations  Pg 79
7. Zoo Trek Authority Ballot  Pg 82
8. Lease Agreement Termination – Del’s Farm & Feed  Pg 86

D. Consent Agenda   Pg 106

9. A.   Approve Minutes of March 22, 2016 City Council Meeting
Approve Minutes of April 5, 2016 City Council Study Session 

B. Claims
C. Transfer Voucher
D. Payroll

E. Committee Reports

10. Mayor’s Report Johnson 
11. Administration, Finance & Public Safety Boyle Barrett 
12. Transportation & Utilities Tremblay 
13. Community Services Rose 
14. Council Member Comments & Good of the Order

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 1



    CITY OF BUCKLEY  PO BOX 1960  BUCKLEY, WA 98321 
360-829-1921  Fax 360-829-2659  http://www.cityofbuckley.com

CITY OF BUCKLEY MEETING LIST 

Apr 12 7:00 PM City Council 

Apr 18 7:00 PM Planning Commission 

Apr 19 9:30 AM Admin, Finance & Public Safety (City Hall) 

Apr 19 7:00 PM Transportation & Utilities (City Hall) 

Apr 21 4:00 PM Community Services 

Apr 26 7:00 PM City Council 

May 2 7:00 PM Planning Commission 

May 3 9:30 AM Admin, Finance & Public Safety (City Hall) 

May 3 7:00 PM City Council Study Session 

May 9 10:30 AM Buckley Hall Board 

May 10 7:00 PM City Council 

May 16 7:00 PM Planning Commission 

May 17 9:30 AM Admin, Finance & Public Safety (City Hall) 

May 17 7:00 PM Transportation & Utilities (City Hall) 

May 19 4:00 PM Community Services  

May 24 7:00 PM City Council 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 2



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
1 2 

3 4 

7  PC 

5 9:30 AM Admin, 
Finance & PS 

7  City Council Study 
Session 

6 7 8 9 

10 11 12 

7  City Council 

13 14 15 16 

17 18 

7  PC 

19 9:30 AM Admin, 
Finance & PS 

7 Transportation & 
Utilities 

20 21 

4  Community Ser-
vices 

22 23 

24 25 26 

7  City Council 

27 28 29 30 

April 2016 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 3



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
1 2 

7  Planning Commis-
sion 

3  9:30 Admin, Fin & 
PS 

7 City Council Study 
Session 

4 5 6 7 

8 9 

10:30 Buckley Hall 
Board 

10 

7  City Council 

11 12 13 14 

15 16 

7  Planning Commis-
sion 

17 9:30 Admin, Fin 
& PS 

7  Transportation & 
Utilities 

18 19 

4  Community Ser-
vices 

20 21 

22 23 24 

7  City Council 

25 26 27 28 

29 30 31 

May 2016 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 4



A. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 5



B. STAFF REPORTS

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 6



C. MAIN AGENDA

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 7



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT: Agenda Date:      April 12, 2016 AB16-048 

Public Hearing – City Assumption 
of Rights, Powers, Functions & 
Obligations of TBD 

Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt X X 
City Attorney – Kristin Eick X X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller 
Building Depart – Mike Deadmond 
Finance Depart  – Sheila Bazzar 

Cost Impact:  N/A Fire Depart – Chief Predmore 
Fund Source:  N/A Parks & Rec Depart – Ellen Boyd 
Timeline:  N/A Planning Depart – Kathy Thompson 

Police Depart – Chief Arsanto 
Court – Jessica Cash 
City Clerk –  Joanne Starr X 

Attachments: Ordinance 

SUMMARY STATEMENT: The purpose of the Public Hearing is to solicit public input and comment 
on the proposed transfer and assumption of rights, powers, immunities, functions and obligations of the 
Buckley Transportation Benefit District to the City as allowed under the 2015 State Legislature Second 
Engrossed Substitute Senate Bill (“2ESSB”) 5987.  

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Trans/Utilities - 2015 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   None 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date Action Vote 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 8



 
 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ASSUMING THE RIGHTS, POWERS, 

IMMUNITY, FUNCTIONS & OBLIGATIONS 
OF THE 

TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT DISTRICT 
 
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Buckley City Council has scheduled a Public 
Hearing at a City Council Meeting on April 12, 2016, at 7:00 PM, at the Buckley Multipurpose 
Building, at 811 Main, Buckley.  The purpose of the Public Hearing is to solicit public input and 
comment on the proposed transfer and assumption of rights, powers, immunities, functions and 
obligations of the Buckley Transportation Benefit District to the City as allowed under the 2015 
State Legislature Second Engrossed Substitute Senate Bill (“2ESSB”) 5987. 
 
 Each person wishing to speak at this Public Hearing will take the podium, clearly state 
his or her name and full address for the record, and will be allowed three (3) minutes in which to 
voice their comments and/or concerns on the matter at hand.  Speakers are asked to avoid 
repetitious or irrelevant comments, and personal attacks will not be tolerated.  Questions will 
not be taken at this time.  If you have questions, please contact the City as indicated below, in 
advance of the Public Hearing. 
 
 Buckley does not discriminate on the basis of disabilities.  If you need special 
accommodation, please contact City Hall within three business days prior to the public hearing at 
(360) 761-7801. 
 
 Comments for or against may be presented orally at the Public Hearing or submitted in 
writing to Joanne Starr, City Clerk, P. O. Box 1960, Buckley, WA  98321, or by e-mail to:  
jstarr@cityofbuckley.com, prior to 5:00 PM on Monday, April 11, 2016.  For questions, please 
stop by City Hall at 933 Main Street, or call (360) 761-7801. 
 
DATED this 15th day of March, 2016 
 
Posted:  March 23, 2016 
Published: March 30, 2016 and April 6, 2016. 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 9



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT: Agenda Date:      April 12, 2016 AB16-049 

ORD No. __-16: City Assumption of 
Rights, Powers, Functions & 
Obligations of TBD 

Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt X X 
City Attorney – Kristin Eick X X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller 
Building Depart – Mike Deadmond 
Finance Depart  – Sheila Bazzar 

Cost Impact:  N/A Fire Depart – Chief Predmore 
Fund Source:  N/A Parks & Rec Depart – Ellen Boyd 
Timeline:  N/A Planning Depart – Kathy Thompson 

Police Depart – Chief Arsanto 
Court – Jessica Cash 
City Clerk –  Joanne Starr X 

Attachments: Ordinance & Attorney Memo 

SUMMARY STATEMENT: Ordinance being presented for consideration transfers rights, powers, 
immunities, functions and obligations of the Buckley Transportation Benefit District to the City as 
allowed under the 2015 State Legislature Second Engrossed Substitute Senate Bill (“2ESSB”) 5987.  

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Trans/Utilities - 2015 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Motion to Approve ORD No. __-16 
Authorizing City Assumption of Rights, Powers, Functions & Obligations of 
TBD. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date Action Vote 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 10



ORDINANCE NO. ___-16 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY, 
WASHINGTON ASSUMING THE RIGHTS, 
POWERS, FUNCTIONS AND OBLIGATIONS OF 
THE BUCKLEY TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT 
DISTRICT; AMENDING CHAPTER 13.18 OF THE 
BUCKLEY MUNICIPAL CODE; AND PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 13-12, the City of Buckley City Council established a 

transportation benefit district to be known as the Buckley Transportation District (“District” or “TBD”), 

with geographical boundaries comprise of the corporate limits of the city as they currently exist or as they 

may exist following future annexations; and 

 WHEREAS, the 2015 State Legislature adopted Second Engrossed Substitute Senate Bill 

(“2ESSB”) 5987, the majority of which became effective on July 15, 2015; and 

 WHEREAS, Section 301 of 2ESSB 5987 authorizes any city in which a transportation benefit 

district has been established pursuant to chapter 36.73 RCW with boundaries conterminous with the 

boundaries of the city to assume the rights, powers, functions, and obligations of the TBD, by adoption of 

an ordinance or resolution of the city legislative authority; and 

 WHEREAS, Section 302 of 2ESSB 5987 provides that the assumption of rights, powers, 

functions, and obligations of a transportation benefit district may be initiated by the adoption of an 

ordinance or a resolution by the city legislative authority, indicating its intention to consider the 

assumption of such rights, powers, functions, and obligations and setting a public hearing at which all 

interested parties may appear and be heard and at which the city does then consider the proposed 

assumption of the rights, power, functions, and obligations of the transportation benefit district; and 

 WHEREAS, on March 22, 2016, the Buckley City Council adopted Resolution No. 16-05, which 

declared the City Council’s intention to consider the assumption of rights, powers, functions and 

obligations of the District, and set a public hearing for April 12, 2016; and  

 WHEREAS, on April 12, 2016, the Buckley City Council held a public meeting at which all 

interested parties were invited to appear and be heard; and 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 11



 WHEREAS, following the conclusion of the public hearing, the City Council determined that the 

public interest and welfare would be satisfied by the City’s assumption of the rights, powers, functions 

and obligations of the District, because such assumption would provide for more efficient administration 

of transportation maintenance and improvement funds previously authorized to be collected and expended 

by the District; NOW, THEREFORE, 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 Section 1. -- Findings.  The Buckley City Council hereby adopts by reference the above recitals 

as legislative findings in support of this ordinance.  Pursuant to Section 303 of 2ESSB 5987, the City 

Council further expressly finds, after receiving testimony at the April 12, 2016 public hearing, that the 

public interest and welfare would be satisfied by the City assuming the rights, powers, immunities, 

functions and obligations of the Buckley Transportation Benefit District. 

Section 2. -- Assumption of Buckley Transportation Benefit District.  Pursuant to Section 

303, subsection (1) of 2ESSB 5987, the City of Buckley does hereby assume all of the rights, powers, 

immunities, functions, and obligations of the Buckley Transportation Benefit District, and the City of 

Buckley is hereby vested with each and every right, power, immunity, function, and obligation currently 

granted to or possessed by the Buckley Transportation Benefit District as of the effective date of this 

Ordinance.  The rights, powers, functions and obligations previously exercised and/or performed by the 

governing body of the Buckley Transportation Benefit District are hereby assumed by and transferred to 

the City of Buckley City Council.  

 Section 3. -- New Section 13.18.001 Adopted.  A new section 13.18.001 of the Buckley 

Municipal Code is hereby adopted to read as follows: 

 13.18.001. Assumption of transportation benefit district. 
 

From and after the effective date of Ordinance No. _____, the City of 
Buckley assumes all the rights, powers, immunities, functions, and 
obligations of the Buckley Transportation Benefit District previously 
established by this chapter, and the City of Buckley is hereby vested with 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 12



each and every right, power, immunity, function, and obligation granted 
to or possessed by the Buckley Transportation Benefit District under 
Chapter 36.73 RCW, this chapter, and/or any other applicable law as of 
the effective date of Ordinance No. ____.  References to the District, the 
rights, powers, functions and obligations previously exercised and/or 
performed by the governing body of the Buckley Transportation Benefit 
District pursuant to Section 13.18.020 of this chapter are hereby assumed 
by and transferred to the City of Buckley City Council.  

 
 Section 4. -- 13.18.020 BMC Amended.  Pursuant to Section 303, subsection (2) of 2ESSB 

5987, the governing body of the Buckley Transportation Benefit District established in Section 13.18.020 

of the Buckley Municipal Code is hereby abolished, and Section 13.18.020 of the Buckley Municipal 

Code is hereby adopted to read as follows: 

13.18.020 Governing board. 
 
(1) The governing board of the transportation benefit district shall be the Buckley city 
council acting in an ex officio and independent capacity, which shall have the authority to 
exercise the statutory powers set forth in Chapter 36.73 RCW. 
(2) The treasurer of the transportation benefit district shall be the city finance director. 
(3) The board city council shall develop a material change policy to address major plan 
changes that affect project delivery or the ability to finance the plan, pursuant to the 
requirements set forth in RCW 36.73.160(1). 
(4) The board city council shall issue an annual report, pursuant to the requirements of 
RCW 36.73.160(2). 

 
Section 5. -- Section 13.18.030 BMC Amended.   Section 13.18.030 of the 

Buckley Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 

13.18.030 Authority of the district. 
 
(1) The district city, acting by and through its city council, may authorize 
a vehicle tax fee up to the maximum fee provided for in RCW 36.73.065. 
 
(2) When authorized by the voters pursuant to the requirements of 
Chapter 36.73 RCW, other taxes, fees, charges and tolls or increases in 
revenue services may be assessed for the preservation, maintenance and 
operation of city streets. 
 
(3) The board city council shall have and may exercise any powers 
provided by law to fulfill the purposes of the district Chapter 36.73 
RCW. 
 
( 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 13



Section 6. -- Section 13.18.040 BMC Amended.  Section 13.18.040 of the 

Buckley Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 

13.18.040 Use of Funds.  
 
The funds generated by the transportation benefit district exercise of the 
powers granted in Section 13.18.030 and/or Chapter 36.73 RCW may be 
used for any purpose allowed by law including to operate the district and 
to make transportation improvements that are consistent with existing 
state, regional, and local transportation plans and necessitated by existing 
or reasonably foreseeable congestion levels pursuant of Chapter 36.73 
RCW.  The funds generated shall also be used for transportation 
improvements that preserve, maintain and operate the existing 
transportation infrastructure of the city, consistent with the requirements 
of Chapter 36.73 RCW.  The transportation improvements funded by the 
district shall be made in an effort to reduce the risk of transportation 
facility failure and improve safety, decrease travel time, increase daily 
and peak period trip capacity, improve modal connectivity, and preserve 
and maintain optimal performance of the infrastructure over time to 
avoid expensive infrastructure replacement in the future. 

 
Section 7. -- No Existing Right Impaired.  Pursuant to Section 304 of 2ESSB 

5987, nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed as impairing or altering any existing 

rights acquired by the Buckley Transportation Benefit District under chapter 36.73 RCW, 

this chapter or any other provision of law applicable to transportation benefit districts. 

Nor does this assumption impair or alter any actions, activities, or proceedings validated 

thereunder; any civil or criminal proceedings instituted thereunder, any rule, regulation, 

or order promulgated thereunder; any administrative action taken thereunder; nor the 

validity of any act performed by the Buckley Transportation Benefit District or division 

thereof or any officer thereof prior to the assumption of such rights, powers, functions, 

and obligations by the city hereunder.  

 Section 8. -- Rules, Regulations, Pending Business, and Contracts.  Pursuant 

to Section 305, subsection (1) of 2ESSB 5987, all rules and regulations and all pending 

business before the board of the Buckley Transportation Benefit District shall be 

continued and acted upon by the City Council.  In addition, pursuant to subsection (2) of 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 14



Section 305, all existing contracts and obligations of the Buckley Transportation Benefit 

District remain in full force and effect, and will be performed by the City.  The 

assumption does not affect the validity of any official act performed by any official or 

employee prior to the assumption authorized by Sections 2 and 3 of this ordinance.  

 Section 9. -- Records of the Buckley Transportation Benefit District.  

Pursuant to Section 306, subsection (1) of 2ESSB 5987, all reports, documents, surveys, 

books, records, files, papers, or other writings related to the administration of the powers, 

duties, and functions available to the Buckley Transportation Benefit District shall be 

made available to the city.  

 Section 10. -- Funds, Credits, Appropriations, Federal Grants, or Other 

Assets.  Pursuant to Section 306, subsection (2) of 2ESSB 5987, all funds, credits, or 

other assets held in connection with rights, powers, duties, and functions of the Buckley 

Transportation Benefit District assumed hereunder shall be assigned to the City. Further, 

pursuant to Section 306, subsection (3) of 2ESSB 5987, any appropriations or federal 

grants made to the Buckley Transportation Benefit District for the purpose of carrying 

out the rights, powers, functions, and obligations authorized to be assumed by the City 

must, on the effective date of the assumption, be credited to the City for the purpose of 

carrying out such assumed rights, powers, functions, and obligations.  

 Section 11. -- Assumption of Indebtedness.  Pursuant to Section 307 of 2ESSB 

5987, the city assumes and agrees to provide for the payment of all of the indebtedness of 

the Buckley Transportation Benefit District, including the payment and retirement of 

outstanding general obligation and revenue bonds (if any) issued by the Buckley 

Transportation Benefit District.  

 Section 12. -- Severability.  If any one or more section, subsection, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, is 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 15



held to be unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this 

Ordinance be pre-empted by state or federal law or regulation, such decision or pre-

emption shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance or its 

application to other persons or circumstances, and the same shall remain in full force and 

effect.  

Section 13. -- Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect 

five (5) days from and after its passage and approval and publication as required by law. 

  
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Buckley, Washington this ____ day of 
______________, 2016. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
____________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
____________________________________ 
City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 16



City of Buckley 
P.O. Box 1960, Buckley WA  98321 
Phone: 360-829-1921 ext 200 
Fax: 360-829-2659       

Memo 
To:        Mayor & City Council 

From:   City Attorney 

Date:    March 14, 2016 

RE:       City Assumption of Rights, Powers, Functions & Obligations of TBD 

I’m sending along the resolution and ordinance you are going to need to accomplish the 
assumption of the Buckley TBD.  Here is an outline of the steps you’ll need to follow: 

1 - The City Council must adopt a resolution indicating its intention to conduct a 
hearing concerning the assumption of such rights, powers, functions, and obligations of the 
TBD.  

2 - The resolution must set a time and place at which the city council will consider the 
proposed assumption of the rights, powers, functions, and obligations of the transportation 
benefit district, and must state that all persons interested may appear and be heard.  

3 - The resolution of intention must be published at least two times during the two 
weeks preceding the scheduled hearing in newspapers of daily general circulation printed or 
published in the city or county in which the transportation benefit district is to be located.  

4 - At the time scheduled for the hearing in the resolution of intention, the city council 
must consider the assumption of the rights, powers, functions, and obligations of the 
transportation benefit district and hear those appearing and all protests and objections to it.  

5 - If, after receiving testimony, the city council determines that the public interest or 
welfare would be satisfied by the city assuming the rights, powers, immunities, functions, 
and obligations of the transportation benefit district, the city council may declare that to be its 
intent and assume such rights, powers, immunities, functions, and obligations by ordinance 
or resolution, providing that the city is vested with every right, power, immunity, function, 
and obligation currently granted to or possessed by the transportation benefit district.  

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 17



6 - Upon assumption of the rights, powers, immunities, functions, and obligations of 
the transportation benefit district by the city, the governing body established pursuant to 
RCW 36.73.020 must be abolished and the city council is vested with all rights, powers, 
immunities, functions, and obligations otherwise vested by law in the governing board of the 
transportation benefit district. 

Once this is accomplished, I would also suggest amending the TBD Contract with the DOL to 
replace references to the TBD with the City or at least contacting the DOL to see if they 
believe an amendment is required.  The current DOL contract prohibits any assignment of 
the contract, but I don’t really think this is a true assignment.  Rather, the City is simply 
assuming the rights of the TBD.  You also may need to do a budget amendment to 
incorporate the TBD budget into the City’s budget and amend the code to create a TBD fund. 

Let me know if you have any questions! 

Thanks, 
Kristin 

Kristin N. Eick  |  Attorney at Law 

Ogden Murphy Wallace P.L.L.C.  
901 Fifth Avenue, Suite 3500 Seattle, WA 98164 
phone: 206.447.7000  |  fax: 206.447.0215 
keick@omwlaw.com |  omwlaw.com 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 18



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date:    April 12, 2016               AB16-050 
 
ORD No. __-16: Granting non-
exclusive telecommunications 
franchise to Astound Broadband, 
LLC.  

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt X X 
City Attorney – W. Scott Snyder X X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
Building Depart – Mike Deadmond   
Finance Depart  – Sheila Bazzar   

Cost Impact:  Costs incurred as a result of the 
negotiations of this franchise will be paid for 
by the franchisee. 

Fire Depart – Chief Predmore   
Parks & Rec Depart – Ellen Boyd   
Planning Depart – Kathy Thompson   

Fund Source:  N/A Police Depart – Chief Arsanto   
Timeline:  N/A  City Clerk – Joanne Starr  X 
Attachments: Ordinance with Franchise Agreement 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: For City Council approval of a grant of a non-exclusive 
telecommunications franchise to Astound Broadband, LLC, for the installation, operation, and 
maintenance of a telecommunication system within the City’s rights-of-way.  Astound Broadband, LLC, 
is a telecommunications company that provides private line, internet access services, dark fiber services 
and lit fiber services.  If this franchise is approved Astound will still be required to obtain all appropriate 
permits and approvals prior to commencing construction and/or installing their facilities in the right-of-
way.   
 
While State law prohibits the City from imposing a franchise fee for telecommunications systems, the 
franchise does require Franchisee to pay the City for its administrative costs incurred in preparing and 
administering the franchise agreement. The Franchisee will reimburse the City for its legal and out-of-
pocket costs (i.e. publication, mailing and copying). In addition the Franchisee is offering a 50% discount 
from their standard commercial rates to the City for services of our choosing: Internet, Ethernet, or dark 
fiber, based on their standard service agreements for the next six years. 
 
This is the 3rd presentation to Council and therefore can be considered for adoption pursuant to RCW 
35A.47.040  
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Trans/Utilities 2/16/2016 & 3/15/16 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion to Approve the ORD No. ___-16 
establishing a new Franchise Agreement between Astound Broadband, LLC, 
and the City of Buckley and establishing an effective date. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 19



CITY OF BUCKLEY 
ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

 
An ORDINANCE of the City Council of the City of Buckley, Pierce 
County, Washington, establishing a new Franchise Agreement 
between Astound Broadband, LLC and the City of Buckley.  

 
WHEREAS, the City is authorized to grant and renew telecommunications franchises for 

the installation, operation, and maintenance of telecommunication systems and otherwise regulate 

telecommunications services within the City boundaries by virtue of federal and state statutes, by 

the City’s police powers, by its authority over its public rights-of-way, and by other City powers 

and authority; and 

 

WHEREAS, Astound Broadband, LLC d/b/a Wave (“Franchisee”), desires to provide 

telecommunications services and to construct, operate and maintain a telecommunications system 

within the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has the authority to grant franchises for the use of its streets 

and other public properties pursuant to RCW 35A.47.040; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the terms of the Franchise are consistent 

with their desired objectives and serves the interest of the community and its citizens. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises made herein, and other 

good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the 

City and Grantee do hereby agree as follows: 

 
Section 1.  Franchise Granted.   

1.1 Pursuant to RCW 35A.47.040, the city of Buckley, a Washington municipal 

corporation (the “City”), grants to Franchisee, its successors, legal representatives and assigns, 

subject to the terms and conditions set forth below, a Franchise for a period of ten (10) years, 

beginning on the effective date of this ordinance, set forth in Section 40. 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 20



1.2 This Franchise grants Franchisee the right, privilege, and authority to 

construct, operate, maintain, replace, acquire, sell, lease, and use all necessary Facilities for a 

telecommunications network in, under, on, across, over, through, along or below the public Rights-

of-Ways located in the City, including such additional areas as may be subsequently included in 

the corporate limits of the City during the term of this Franchise (the “Franchise Area”), as 

approved pursuant to City permits issued pursuant to Section 8.2.  The phrase “Rights-of-Way” 

(singular “Right-of-Way”) as used in this Franchise, means all public streets and property granted 

or reserved for, or dedicated to, public use for street purposes, together with public property 

granted or reserved for, or dedicated to, public use for walkways, sidewalks, bikeways, and 

parking whether improved or unimproved, including the air rights, sub-surface rights and 

easements related thereto, and over which the City has authority to grant permits, licenses or 

franchises for use thereof, or has regulatory authority thereover, excluding railroad right-of-way, 

airports, harbor areas, buildings, parks, poles, conduits, dedicated but un-opened right-of-way, and 

any land, facilities, or property owned, maintained, or leased by the City in its governmental or 

proprietary capacity or as an operator of a utility. To the extent that easements are designated for 

only certain functions or do not permit such Facilities, such easements will not be considered part 

of the Rights-of-Way.  “Facilities” as used in this Franchise means one or more elements of 

Franchisee’s telecommunications network, with all necessary cables, wires, conduits, ducts, 

pedestals, antennas, electronics, and other necessary appurtenances; provided that new utility poles 

for overhead wires or cabling are specifically excluded.  Equipment enclosures with air 

conditioning or other noise generating equipment are also excluded from “Facilities,” to the extent 

such equipment is located in zoned residential areas of the City.   

Section 2.  Authority Limited to Occupation of Public Rights-of-Way. 

2.1 The authority granted by this Franchise is a limited, non-exclusive 

authorization to occupy and use the City’s Rights-of-Way.  Such use must be in compliance with 

the Buckley Municipal Code provisions, including and not limited to Chapter 13.35. Franchisee 

represents that it expects to provide the following services within the City: telecommunications 

services, private line, internet access services, dark fiber services and lit fiber services (the 

“Services”).  Nothing contained within this Franchise shall be construed to grant or convey any 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 21



right, title, or interest in the Rights-of-Way of the City to Franchisee other than for the purpose of 

providing the Services.  A more detailed description of Franchisee’s telecommunications system 

and Services is described in Exhibit A.  If Franchisee desires to expand the Services provided 

within the City, it shall provide written notification of the addition of such services prior to the 

addition of the service; provided, however, that Franchisee may not offer Cable Services pursuant 

to Section 2.3. 

2.2 As described in Section 8, construction is not authorized without the 

appropriate permits, leases, easements, or approvals.  This Franchise does not and shall not convey 

any right to Franchisee to install its Facilities on, under, over, across, or to otherwise use City 

owned or leased properties of any kind outside of the incorporated area of the City or to install 

Facilities on, under, over, across, or otherwise use any City owned or leased property other than 

the City’s Rights-of-Way.  This Franchise does not convey any right to Franchisee to install its 

Facilities on, under, over, or across any facility or structure owned by a third-party without such 

written approval of the third-party.  Further this Franchise does not convey any right to continue in 

any streets, avenues, alleys, roads or public places which are eliminated from the City limits by 

reason of subsequent disincorporation or reduction of City limits.  No substantive expansions, 

additions to, or modifications or relocation of any of the Facilities shall be permitted without first 

having received appropriate permits from the City pursuant to Section 8.2.  As of the effective date 

of this Franchise, Franchisee has no owned Facilities located in the City’s Rights-of-Way.   

2.3 Under this Franchise, the Facilities shall not be used for Cable Services as 

that term is defined in 47 U.S.C. § 522(6). 

2.4 Franchisee shall have the right, without prior City approval, to offer or 

provide capacity or bandwidth to its customers consistent with this Franchise provided: 

(a) Franchisee at all times retains exclusive control over its 

telecommunications system, Facilities and Services and remains responsible for constructing, 

installing, and maintaining its Facilities pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Franchise;  

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 22



(b) Franchisee may not grant rights to any customer or lessee that are 

greater than any rights Franchisee has pursuant to this Franchise;  

(c) Such customer or lessee shall not be construed to be a third-party 

beneficiary under this Franchise; and 

(d) No such customer or lessee may use the telecommunications system 

or Services for any purpose not authorized by this Franchise. 

Section 3.  Non-Exclusive Franchise Grant.  This Franchise is granted upon the express 

condition that it shall not in any manner prevent the City from granting other or further franchises 

in, along, over, through, under, below, or across any Rights-of-Way.  This Franchise shall in no 

way prevent or prohibit the City from using any Rights-of-Way or affect its jurisdiction over any 

Rights-of-Way or any part of Right-of-Way, and the City shall retain power to make all necessary 

changes, relocations, repairs, maintenance, establishment, improvement, dedication of Right-of-

Way as the City may deem fit, including the dedication, establishment, maintenance, and 

improvement of all new Rights-of-Way, thoroughfares, and other public properties of every type 

and description.   

Section 4. Location of Telecommunications Facilities.  Franchisee is maintaining a 

telecommunications network consisting of Facilities within the City.  Franchisee may locate its 

Facilities anywhere within the Franchise Area consistent with the City’s Design and Construction 

Standards, the Buckley Municipal Code, and subject to the City’s applicable permit requirements.  

Franchisee shall not be required to amend this Franchise to construct or acquire Facilities within 

the Franchise Area. 

Section 5.  Relocation of Facilities. 

5.1 Franchisee agrees and covenants to protect, support, temporarily disconnect, 

relocate, or remove from any Rights-of-Way any of its Facilities when reasonably required by the 

City by reason of traffic conditions or public safety, dedications of new Rights-of-Way and the 

establishment and improvement thereof, widening and improvement of existing Rights-of-Way, 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 23



street vacations, freeway construction, change or establishment of street grade, or the construction 

of any public improvement or structure by any governmental agency acting in a governmental 

capacity or as otherwise necessary for the operations of the City or other governmental entity, 

provided that Franchisee shall in all such cases have the privilege to temporarily bypass in the 

authorized portion of the same Rights-of-Way upon approval by the City, which approval shall not 

unreasonably be withheld or delayed, any Facilities required to be temporarily disconnected or 

removed.  Except as otherwise provided by law, the costs and expenses associated with relocations 

ordered pursuant to this Section 5.1 shall be borne by Franchisee.  Nothing contained within this 

Franchise shall limit Franchisee’s ability to seek reimbursement for relocation costs when 

permitted by RCW 35.99.060.  

5.2 Upon request of the City and in order to facilitate the design of City street 

and Right-of-Way improvements, Franchisee agrees, at its sole cost and expense, to locate, and if 

reasonably determined necessary by the City, to excavate and expose its Facilities for inspection so 

that the Facilities’ location may be taken into account in the improvement design.  The decision as 

to whether any Facilities need to be relocated in order to accommodate the City’s improvements 

shall be made by the City upon review of the location and construction of Franchisee’s Facilities. 

The City shall provide Franchisee at least fourteen (14) days’ written notice prior to any 

excavation or exposure of Facilities. 

5.3 If the City determines that the project necessitates the relocation of 

Franchisee’s existing Facilities, the City shall: 

(a) At least forty five (45) days prior to commencing the project,

provide Franchisee with written notice requiring such relocation; provided, however, that in the 

event of an emergency situation, defined for purposes of this Franchise as a condition posing an 

imminent threat to property, life, health, or safety of any person or entity, the City shall give 

Franchisee written notice as soon as practicable; and  

(b) At least forty five (45) days prior to commencing the project,

provide Franchisee with copies of pertinent portions of the plans and specifications for the 

improvement project and a proposed location for Franchisee’s Facilities so that Franchisee may 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 24



relocate its Facilities in other City Rights-of-Way in order to accommodate such improvement 

project; and  

(c) After receipt of such notice and such plans and specifications, 

Franchisee shall complete relocation of its Facilities at least ten (10) days prior to commencement 

of the City’s project at no charge or expense to the City, except as otherwise provided by law. 

Relocation shall be accomplished in such a manner as to accommodate the City’s project.   

5.4 Franchisee may, after receipt of written notice requesting a relocation of its 

Facilities, submit to the City written alternatives to such relocation.  Such alternatives must be 

submitted to the City at least thirty (30) days prior to commencement of the project.  The City shall 

evaluate the alternatives and advise Franchisee in writing if one or more of the alternatives are 

suitable to accommodate the work that would otherwise necessitate relocation of the Facilities.  If 

so requested by the City, Franchisee shall submit at its sole cost and expense additional 

information to assist the City in making such evaluation.  The City shall give each alternative 

proposed by Franchisee full and fair consideration.  In the event the City ultimately determines that 

there is no other reasonable or feasible alternative, Franchisee shall relocate its Facilities as 

otherwise provided in this Section 5.   

5.5 The provisions of this Section 5 shall in no manner preclude or restrict 

Franchisee from making any arrangements it may deem appropriate when responding to a request 

for relocation of its Facilities by any person or entity other than the City, where the facilities to be 

constructed by said person or entity are not or will not become City-owned, operated, or 

maintained facilities, provided that such arrangements do not unduly delay a City construction 

project. 

5.6 Franchisee will indemnify, hold harmless, and pay the costs of defending the 

City, in accordance with the provisions of Section 17, against any and all claims, suits, actions, 

damages, or liabilities for delays on City construction projects caused by or arising out of the 

failure of Franchisee to remove or relocate its Facilities in a timely manner; provided, that 

Franchisee shall not be responsible for damages due to delays caused by circumstances beyond the 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 25



control of Franchisee or the negligence, willful misconduct, or unreasonable delay of the City or 

any unrelated third party. 

5.7 Whenever any person shall have obtained permission from the City to use 

any Right-of-Way for the purpose of moving any building, Franchisee, upon thirty (30) days’ 

written notice from the City, shall raise, remove, or relocate to another part of the Right-of-Way, at 

the expense of the person desiring to move the building, any of Franchisee’s Facilities that may 

obstruct the removal of such building. 

5.8 If Franchisee fails, neglects, or refuses to remove or relocate its Facilities as 

directed by the City following the procedures outlined in Section 5.1 through Section 5.4 the City 

may perform such work or cause it to be done, and the City’s costs shall be paid by Franchisee 

pursuant to Section 15.3 and Section 15.4. 

5.9 The provisions of this Section 5 shall survive the expiration or termination 

of this Franchise during such time as Franchisee continues to have Facilities in the Rights-of-Way.   

Section 6.  Undergrounding of Facilities.   

6.1 Franchisee must place its Facilities underground except as otherwise 

expressly provided herein or in available City standards, or in areas where any other 

telecommunications or cable company has placed Facilities above ground.  Except as specifically 

authorized by permit of the City, Franchisee shall not be permitted to erect poles. Franchisee 

acknowledges and agrees that if the City does not require the undergrounding of its Facilities at the 

time of a permit application, the City may, at any time in the future, require the conversion of 

Franchisee’s aerial facilities to underground installation at Franchisee’s expense at such time as the 

City requires all other utilities, except electrical utilities, with aerial facilities in the area to convert 

them to underground installation.  Unless otherwise permitted by the City, Franchisee shall 

underground its Facilities in all new developments and subdivisions where other utilities are to be 

constructed underground and any development or subdivision where utilities are currently 

underground.   

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 26



6.2 Whenever the City may require the undergrounding of the aerial utilities in 

any area of the City, Franchisee shall underground its aerial facilities in the manner specified by 

the City, concurrently with and in the area of the other affected utilities.  The location of any 

relocated and underground utilities shall be approved by the City.  Where other utilities are present 

and involved in the undergrounding project, Franchisee shall only be required to pay its fair share 

of common costs borne by all utilities, in addition to the costs specifically attributable to the 

undergrounding of Franchisee’s own Facilities.  “Common costs” shall include necessary costs not 

specifically attributable to the undergrounding of any particular facility, such as costs for common 

trenching and utility vaults.  “Fair share” shall be determined for a project on the basis of the 

number of conduits of Franchisee’s Facilities being undergrounded in comparison to the total 

number of conduits of all other utility facilities being undergrounded.  This Section 6.2 shall only 

apply to the extent Franchisee has existing aerial utilities in the City or is specifically authorized to 

build aerial utilities by the City. 

6.3 Within forty-eight (48) hours (excluding weekends and City-recognized 

holidays) following a request from the City, Franchisee shall locate underground Facilities by 

marking the location on the ground.  The location of the underground Facilities shall be identified 

using orange spray paint, unless otherwise specified by the City, and within two (2) feet of the 

actual location. 

6.4 Franchisee shall be entitled to reasonable access to open utility trenches, 

provided that such access does not interfere with the City’s placement of utilities or increase the 

City’s costs. Franchisee shall pay to the City the actual cost to the City resulting from providing 

Franchisee access to an open trench, including without limitation the pro rata share of the costs of 

access to an open trench and any costs associated with the delay of the completion of a public 

works project. 

6.5 Franchisee shall not remove any underground cable or conduit that requires 

trenching or other opening of the Rights-of-Way along the extension of cable to be removed, 

except as provided in this Section 6.5. Franchisee may remove any underground cable from the 

Right-of-Way that has been installed in such a manner that it can be removed without trenching or 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 27



other opening of the Right-of-Way along the extension of cable to be removed, or if otherwise 

permitted by the City. Franchisee may remove any underground cable from the Rights-of-Way 

where reasonably necessary to replace, upgrade, or enhance its Facilities, or pursuant to Section 5. 

When the City determines, in the City’s sole discretion, that Franchisee’s underground Facilities 

must be removed in order to eliminate or prevent a hazardous condition, Franchisee shall remove 

the cable or conduit at Franchisee’s sole cost and expense.  If Franchisee ceases to use all or a 

portion of the underground cable and conduit in the Right-of-Way for a period of twelve 

consecutive months or more, and such cable or conduit is not removed, then it shall be deemed 

abandoned and title thereto shall vest in the City at no cost to the City.  Franchisee must apply and 

receive a permit, pursuant to Section 8.2, prior to any such removal of underground cable or 

conduit from the Right-of-Way and must provide as-built plans and maps pursuant to Section 7.1. 

6.6 The provisions of this Section 6 shall survive the expiration, revocation, or 

termination of this Franchise during such time as Franchisee continues to have Facilities in the 

Rights-of-Way.  Nothing in this Section 6 shall be construed as requiring the City to pay any costs 

of undergrounding any of Franchisee’s Facilities. 

Section 7.  Maps and Records.  

7.1 After construction is complete, Franchisee shall provide the City with 

accurate copies of as-built plans and maps in compliance with the Buckley Municipal Code 

Section 13.35.160.  These plans and maps shall be provided at no cost to the City, and shall 

include hard copies and digital files in AutoCAD or other industry standard readable formats that 

are acceptable to the City and delivered electronically.  Franchisee shall provide such maps within 

ten (10) days following a request from the City.  Franchisee shall warrant the accuracy of all plans, 

maps and as-builts provided to the City.   

7.2 Within thirty (30) days of a written request from the City, Franchisee shall 

furnish the City with information sufficient to demonstrate: 1) that Franchisee has complied with 

all applicable requirements of this Franchise; and 2) that all taxes, including but not limited to 

sales, utility and/or telecommunications taxes due the City in connection with Franchisee’s 

Services and Facilities have been properly collected and paid by Franchisee. 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 28



7.3 All books, records, maps, and other documents maintained by Franchisee 

with respect to its Facilities within the Rights-of-Way shall be made available for inspection by the 

City at reasonable times and intervals; provided, however, that nothing in this Section 7.3 shall be 

construed to require Franchisee to violate state or federal law regarding customer privacy, nor shall 

this Section 7.3 be construed to require Franchisee to disclose proprietary or confidential 

information without adequate safeguards for its confidential or proprietary nature. Unless 

otherwise prohibited by State or federal law, nothing in this Section 7.3 shall be construed as 

permission to withhold relevant customer data from the City that the City requests in conjunction 

with a tax audit or review; provided, however, Franchisee may redact identifying information such 

as names, street addresses (excluding City and zip code), Social Security Numbers, or Employer 

Identification Numbers related to any confidentiality agreements Franchisee has with third parties. 

7.4 Franchisee shall not be required to disclose information that it reasonably 

deems to be proprietary or confidential in nature.  The City agrees to keep confidential any 

proprietary or confidential books or records to the extent permitted by law.  Franchisee shall be 

responsible for clearly and conspicuously identifying the work as confidential or proprietary, and 

shall provide a brief written explanation as to why such information is confidential and how it may 

be treated as such under State or federal law.  In the event that the City receives a public records 

request under Chapter 42.56 RCW or similar law for the disclosure of information Franchisee has 

designated as confidential, trade secret, or proprietary, the City shall promptly provide written 

notice of such disclosure so that Franchisee can take appropriate steps to protect its interests.  

Nothing in this Section 7.4 prohibits the City from complying with Chapter 42.56 RCW or any 

other applicable law or court order requiring the release of public records, and the City shall not be 

liable to Franchisee for compliance with any law or court order requiring the release of public 

records.  The City shall comply with any injunction or court order obtained by Franchisee that 

prohibits the disclosure of any such confidential records; however, in the event a higher court 

overturns such injunction or court order and such higher court action is or has become final and 

non-appealable, Franchisee shall reimburse the City for any fines or penalties imposed for failure 

to disclose such records as required hereunder within sixty (60) days of a request from the City. 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 29



Section 8.  Work in the Rights-of-Way. 

8.1 During any period of relocation, construction or maintenance, all work 

performed by Franchisee or its contractors shall be accomplished in a safe and workmanlike 

manner, so as to minimize interference with the free passage of traffic and the free use of adjoining 

property, whether public or private.  Franchisee shall at all times post and maintain proper 

barricades, flags, flaggers, lights, flares, and other measures as required for the safety of all 

members of the general public and comply with all applicable safety regulations during such 

period of construction as required by the Buckley Municipal Code or the laws of the State of 

Washington, including RCW 39.04.180 for the construction of trench safety systems.  Franchisee 

shall, at its own expense, maintain its Facilities in a safe condition, in good repair, and in a manner 

suitable to the City.  Additionally, Franchisee shall keep its Facilities free of debris and anything of 

a dangerous, noxious, or offensive nature or which would create a hazard or undue vibration, heat, 

noise, or any interference with City services.  The provisions of this Section 8 shall survive the 

expiration of this Franchise during such time as Franchisee continues to have Facilities in the 

Rights-of-Way. 

8.2 Unless not required by the Buckley Municipal Code, whenever Franchisee 

shall commence work in any public Rights-of-Way for the purpose of excavation, installation, 

construction, repair, maintenance, or relocation of its cable or equipment, it shall apply to the City 

for a permit to do so and shall comply with the requirements of the Buckley Municipal Code 

Chapter 13.35.  In addition, Franchisee shall give the City at least one working day prior written 

notice of its intent to commence work in the Rights-of-Way.  During the progress of the work, 

Franchisee shall not unnecessarily obstruct the passage or proper use of the Rights-of-Way, and all 

work by Franchisee in the area shall be performed in accordance with applicable City standards 

and specifications and warranted for a period of two (2) years. In no case shall any work 

commence within any Rights-of-Way without a permit, except as otherwise provided in this 

Franchise or in the Buckley Municipal Code.   

8.3 If either the City or Franchisee shall at any time plan to make excavations in 

any area covered by this Franchise and as described in this Section 8.3, the party planning such 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 30



excavation shall afford the other, upon receipt of a written request to do so, an opportunity to share 

such excavation, PROVIDED THAT: 

(a) Such joint use shall not unreasonably delay the work of the party

causing the excavation to be made; 

(b) Such joint use shall be arranged and accomplished on terms and

conditions satisfactory to both parties and in accordance with the applicable codes, rules and 

regulations; and 

(c) To the extent reasonably possible, the Franchisee shall, at the

direction of the city, cooperate with the City and provide other franchisees with the opportunity to 

utilize joint or shared excavations in order to minimize disruption and damage to the right-of-way 

as well as to minimize traffic related impacts.  

(d) Either party may deny such request for safety reasons.

8.4 Except for emergency situations, Franchisee shall give at least seven (7) 

days’ prior notice of intended construction to residents in the affected area.  Such notice shall 

contain the dates, contact number, nature and location of the work to be performed.  At least 

twenty-four (24) hours prior to entering private property or streets or public easements adjacent to 

or on such private property, Franchisee shall physically post a notice on the property indicating the 

nature and location of the work to be performed.  Door hangers are permissible methods of 

notifications to residents.  Franchisee shall make a good faith effort to comply with the property 

owner/resident’s preferences, if any, on location or placement of underground installations 

(excluding aerial cable lines utilizing existing poles and existing cable paths), consistent with 

sound engineering practices.  Following performance of the work, Franchisee shall restore the 

private property in “as good as” or “better” than the condition prior to construction, except for any 

change in condition not caused by Franchisee.  Any disturbance of landscaping, fencing or other 

improvements on private property caused by Franchisee’s work shall, at the sole expense of 

Franchisee, be promptly repaired and restored to the reasonable satisfaction of the property 

owner/resident.  Notwithstanding the above, nothing herein shall give Franchisee the right to enter 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 31



onto private property without the permission of such private property owner, or as otherwise 

authorized by applicable law. 

8.5 Franchisee may trim trees upon and overhanging on public ways, streets, 

alleys, sidewalks, and other public places of the City so as to prevent the branches of such trees 

from coming in contact with Franchisee’s Facilities.  The right to trim trees in this Section 8.6 shall 

only apply to the extent necessary to protect above ground Facilities.  Franchisee shall ensure that 

its tree trimming activities protect the appearance, integrity, and health of the trees to the extent 

reasonably possible.  Franchisee shall be responsible for all debris removal from such activities. 

All trimming, except in emergency situations, is to be done after the explicit prior written 

notification of the City and at the expense of Franchisee. Nothing herein grants Franchisee any 

authority to act on behalf of the City, to enter upon any private property, or to trim any tree or 

natural growth not owned by the City.  Franchisee shall be solely responsible and liable for any 

damage to any third parties’ trees or natural growth caused by Franchisee’s actions.  Franchisee 

shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City from third-party claims of any nature arising 

out of any act or negligence of Franchisee with regard to tree and/or natural growth trimming, 

damage, and/or removal.  Franchisee shall reasonably compensate the City or the property owner 

for any damage caused by trimming, damage, or removal by Franchisee.  Except in an emergency 

situation, all tree trimming must be performed under the direction of an arborist certified by the 

International Society of Arboriculture, unless otherwise approved by the Public Works Director or 

his/her designee. 

8.6 Franchisee shall meet with the City and other franchise holders and users of 

the Rights-of-Way upon written notice as determined by the City, to schedule and coordinate 

construction in the Rights-of-Way.  All construction locations, activities, and schedules shall be 

coordinated as ordered by the City to minimize public inconvenience, disruption, or damages.   

8.7 Franchisee acknowledges that it, and not the City, shall be responsible for 

compliance with all marking and lighting requirements of the Federal Aviation Administration 

(“FAA”) and the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”) with respect to Franchisee’s 

Facilities, if applicable.  Franchisee shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from any fines or 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 32



other liabilities caused by Franchisee’s failure to comply with such requirements.  Should 

Franchisee or the City be cited by either the FCC or the FAA because the Facilities or Franchisee’s 

equipment is not in compliance and should Franchisee fail to cure the conditions of noncompliance 

within the timeframe allowed by the citing agency, the City may, upon at least forty-eight (48) 

hours’ prior written notice to Franchisee, either terminate this Franchise immediately if the 

equipment is not brought into compliance by the expiration of such notice period or may proceed 

to cure the conditions of noncompliance at Franchisee’s expense, and collect all reasonable costs 

from Franchisee in accordance with the provisions of Section 15.3 and Section 15.4. 

8.8 The granting of this franchise shall not preclude the City, its accredited 

agents or its contractors, from blasting, grading or doing other necessary road work contiguous to 

the Franchisee’s improvements.  The City shall provide Franchisee with twenty-four (24) hours 

written notice of any blasting, grading, excavating  or doing other necessary road work 

contiguous to Franchisee’s improvement.   

Section 9.  One Call Locator Service.  Prior to doing any work in the Rights-of-Way, the 

Franchisee shall follow established procedures, including contacting the Utility Notification Center 

in Washington and comply with all applicable State statutes regarding the One Call Locator 

Service pursuant to Chapter 19.122 RCW.  The City shall not be liable for any damages to 

Franchisee’s Facilities nor for interruptions in service to Franchisee’s customers that are a direct 

result of Franchisee’s failure to locate its Facilities within the prescribed time limits and guidelines 

established by the One Call Locator Service regardless of whether the City issued a permit. 

Section 10.  Safety Requirements. 

10.1 Franchisee shall, at all times, employ professional care and shall install and 

maintain and use industry-standard methods for preventing failures and accidents that are likely to 

cause damage, injuries, or nuisances to the public.  All structures and all lines, equipment, and 

connections in, over, under, and upon the Rights-of-Ways, wherever situated or located, shall at all 

times be kept and maintained in a safe condition. Franchisee shall comply with all federal, State, 

and City safety requirements, rules, regulations, laws, and practices, which shall include Buckley 

Municipal Code Section 13.35.090 and employ all necessary devices as required by applicable law 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 33



during the construction, operation, maintenance, upgrade, repair, or removal of its Facilities.  By 

way of illustration and not limitation, Franchisee shall also comply with the applicable provisions 

of the National Electric Code, National Electrical Safety Code, FCC regulations, and Occupational 

Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) Standards.  Upon reasonable notice to Franchisee, the 

City reserves the general right to inspect the Facilities to evaluate if they are constructed and 

maintained in a safe condition.  

10.2 If an unsafe condition or a violation of Section 10.1 is found to exist, and 

becomes known to the City, the City agrees to give Franchisee written notice of such condition and 

afford Franchisee a reasonable opportunity to repair the same.  If Franchisee fails to start to make 

the necessary repairs and alterations within the time frame specified in such notice (and pursue 

such cure to completion), then the City may make such repairs or contract for them to be made.  

All costs, including administrative costs, incurred by the City in repairing any unsafe conditions 

shall be borne by Franchisee and reimbursed to the City pursuant to Section 15.3 and Section 15.4.  

10.3 Additional safety standards include: 

(a) Franchisee shall endeavor to maintain all equipment lines and 

facilities in an orderly manner, including, but not limited to, the removal of all bundles of unused 

cable on any aerial facilities. 

(b) All installations of equipment, lines, and ancillary facilities shall be 

installed in accordance with industry-standard engineering practices and shall comply with all 

federal, State, and local regulations, ordinances, and laws. 

(c) Any opening or obstruction in the Rights-of-Way or other public 

places made by Franchisee in the course of its operations shall be protected by Franchisee at all 

times by the placement of adequate barriers, fences, or boarding, the bounds of which, during 

periods of dusk and darkness, shall be clearly marked and visible. 

(d) Franchisee shall permit material tests by the Public Works Director 

as further described in the Buckley Municipal Code Section 13.35.210. 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 34



10.4 Unsafe Conditions and Nuisances in the Rights-of-Way.  Franchisee shall 

comply with any order issued by the Public Works Director or his/her designee regarding the 

correction or discontinuance of an unsafe, nonconforming or unauthorized condition within the 

Rights-of-Way as further described by the Buckley Municipal Code Section 13.35.250 and any 

stop work orders as described in the Buckley Municipal Code Section 13.35.290.  Further, 

Franchisee shall comply with any determinations by the Public Works Director or his/her designee 

regarding “Nuisance Utility Facilities” as that term is defined in the Buckley Municipal Code 

Section 13.35.270. 

Section 11.  Work of Contractors and Subcontractors.  Franchisee’s contractors and 

subcontractors shall be licensed and bonded in accordance with State law and the City’s 

ordinances, regulations, and requirements.  Work by contractors and subcontractors is subject to 

the same restrictions, limitations, and conditions as if the work were performed by Franchisee.  

Franchisee shall be responsible for all work performed by its contractors and subcontractors and 

others performing work on its behalf as if the work were performed by Franchisee and shall ensure 

that all such work is performed in compliance with this Franchise and applicable law.   

Section 12.  City Conduit.  Except in emergency situations, Franchisee shall inform the 

Public Works Director with at least thirty (30) days’ advance written notice that it is constructing, 

relocating, or placing ducts or conduits in the Rights-of-Way and provide the City with an 

opportunity to request that Franchisee provide the City with additional duct or conduit, and related 

structures necessary to access the conduit pursuant to and subject to RCW 35.99.070.  Such 

notification shall be in addition to the requirement to apply for and obtain permits pursuant to 

Section 8.2. 

Section 13.  Restoration after Construction. 

13.1 Franchisee shall, after installation, construction, relocation, maintenance, or 

repair of its Facilities, or after abandonment approved pursuant to Section 19, at Franchisee’s own 

cost and expense, promptly remove any obstructions from the Rights-of-Way and restore the 

surface of the Rights-of-Way to a condition “as good as” or “better” than the condition the Rights-

of-Way were in immediately prior to any such installation, construction, relocation, maintenance 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 35



or repair, provided Franchisee shall not be responsible for any changes to the Rights-of-Way not 

caused by Franchisee or anyone doing work for Franchisee.  All trees, landscaping and grounds 

removed, damaged or disturbed as a result of the installation, construction, relocation, maintenance 

or repair, shall be replaced or restored, at Franchisee’s cost and expense, in “as good as” or 

“better” than the condition the Rights-of-Way were in immediately prior to any such work. The 

Public Works Director or his/her designee shall have final approval of the condition of such 

Rights-of-Way after restoration.  All concrete encased survey monuments that have been disturbed 

or displaced by such work shall be restored pursuant to federal, state (Chapter 332-120 WAC), and 

local standards and specifications.   

13.2 Franchisee agrees to promptly complete all restoration work and to promptly 

repair any damage caused by work to the Franchise Area or other affected area at its sole cost and 

expense and according to the time and terms specified in the permits issued by the City, should any 

be required.  All work by Franchisee pursuant to this Franchise shall be performed in accordance 

with applicable City standards and warranted for a period of two (2) years and for undiscovered 

defects as is standard and customary for this type of work. 

13.3 If conditions (e.g. weather) make the complete restoration required under 

Section 13 impracticable, Franchisee shall temporarily restore the affected Right-of-Way or 

property.  Such temporary restoration shall be at Franchisee’s sole cost and expense. Franchisee 

shall promptly undertake and complete the required permanent restoration when conditions no 

longer make such permanent restoration impracticable.   

13.4 In the event Franchisee does not repair a Right-of-Way or an improvement 

in or to a Right-of-Way within the time agreed to by the Public Works Director, or his/her 

designee, the City may repair the damage and shall be reimbursed its actual cost within sixty (60) 

days of submitting an itemized invoice to Franchisee in accordance with the provisions of Section 

15.3 and Section 15.4.  In addition, and pursuant to Section 15.3 and Section 15.4, the City may 

bill Franchisee for expenses associated with the inspection of such restoration work. 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 36



13.5 The provisions of this Section 13 shall survive the expiration or termination 

of this Franchise so long as Franchisee continues to have Facilities in the Rights-of-Way and has 

not completed all restoration to the City’s standards. 

Section 14.  Emergencies. 

14.1 In the event of any emergency in which any of Franchisee’s Facilities 

located in or under any street endangers the property, life, health, or safety of any person, entity or 

the City, or if Franchisee’s construction area is otherwise in such a condition as to immediately 

endanger the property, life, health, or safety of any person, entity or the City, Franchisee shall 

immediately take the proper emergency measures to repair its Facilities and to cure or remedy the 

dangerous conditions for the protection of property, life, health, or safety of any person, entity or 

the City, without first applying for and obtaining a permit as required by this Franchise.  

Franchisee shall notify the City, verbally or in writing, as soon as practicable following the onset 

of the emergency.  However, this shall not relieve Franchisee from the requirement of obtaining 

any permits necessary for this purpose, and Franchisee shall apply for all such permits not later 

than forty-eight hours after beginning emergency work in the Rights-of Way. The City retains the 

right and privilege to cut or move any Facilities located within the Rights-of-Way of the City, as 

the City may determine to be necessary, appropriate, or useful in response to any public health or 

safety emergency. If the City becomes aware of an emergency before the Franchisee, then the City 

shall notify Franchisee by telephone promptly upon learning of the emergency and shall exercise 

reasonable efforts to avoid an interruption of Franchisee’s operations. 

14.2 Whenever the construction, installation, or excavation of Facilities 

authorized by this Franchise has caused or contributed to a condition that appears to substantially 

impair the lateral support of the adjoining street or public place, an adjoining public place, street 

utilities, City property, Rights-of-Way, or private property (collectively “Endangered Property”) or 

endangers the public, the Public Works Director or his/her designee, may direct Franchisee, at 

Franchisee’s own expense, to take reasonable action to protect the Endangered Property or the 

public, and such action may include compliance within a prescribed time.  In the event that 

Franchisee fails or refuses to promptly take the actions directed by the City, or fails to fully 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 37



comply with such directions, or if an emergency situation exists that requires immediate action 

before the City can timely contact Franchisee to request Franchisee effect the immediate repair, the 

City may enter upon the Endangered Property and take such reasonable actions as are necessary to 

protect the Endangered Property or the public.  Franchisee shall be liable to the City for the costs 

of any such repairs in accordance with the provisions of Sections 15.3 and 15.4.   

14.3 The City shall not be liable for any damage to or loss of Facilities within the 

Rights-of-Way as a result of or in connection with any public works, public improvements, 

construction, grading, excavation, filling, or work of any kind in the Rights-of-Way by or on 

behalf of the City, except to the extent directly and proximately caused by the gross negligence or 

willful acts of the City, its employees, contractors, or agents.  The City shall further not be liable to 

Franchisee for any direct, indirect, or any other such damages suffered by any person or entity of 

any type as a direct or indirect result of the City’s actions under this Section 14 except to the extent 

caused by the gross negligence or willful acts of the City, its employees, contractors, or agents.   

Section 15.  Recovery of Costs. 

15.1 Franchisee shall pay a grant fee in an amount not to exceed Four Thousand 

Dollars ($4,000) for the City’s legal costs incurred in drafting and processing this Franchise and all 

work related thereto.  No construction permits shall be issued for the installation of Facilities 

authorized until such time as the City has received payment of the grant fee.  Franchisee shall 

further be subject to all permit fees associated with activities undertaken through the authority 

granted in this Franchise or under the laws of the City.  Where the City incurs costs and expenses 

for review, inspection, or supervision of activities, including but not limited to reasonable fees 

associated with attorneys, consultants, City Staff and City Attorney time, undertaken through the 

authority granted in this Franchise or any ordinances relating to the subject for which a permit fee 

is not established, Franchisee shall pay such costs and expenses directly to the City in accordance 

with the provisions of Section 15.3.   

15.2 In addition to Section 15.1, Franchisee shall promptly reimburse the City in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 15.3 and Section 15.4 for any and all costs the City 

reasonably incurs in response to any emergency situation involving Franchisee’s Facilities, to the 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 38



extent said emergency is not the fault of the City.  The City agrees to simultaneously seek 

reimbursement from any franchisee or permit holder who caused or contributed to the emergency 

situation. 

15.3 Franchisee shall reimburse the City within sixty (60) days of submittal by 

the City of an itemized billing for reasonably incurred costs, itemized by project, for Franchisee’s 

proportionate share of all actual, identified expenses incurred by the City in planning, constructing, 

installing, repairing, altering, or maintaining any City facility as the result of the presence of 

Franchisee’s Facilities in the Rights-of-Way.  Such costs and expenses shall include but not be 

limited to Franchisee’s proportionate cost of City personnel assigned to oversee or engage in any 

work in the Rights-of-Way as the result of the presence of Franchisee’s Facilities in the Rights-of-

Way.  Such costs and expenses shall also include Franchisee’s proportionate share of any time 

spent reviewing construction plans in order to either accomplish the relocation of Franchisee’s 

Facilities or the routing or rerouting of any utilities so as not to interfere with Franchisee’s 

Facilities. 

15.4 The time of City employees shall be charged at their respective rate of 

salary, including overtime if applicable, plus benefits and reasonable overhead.  Any other costs 

will be billed proportionately on an actual cost basis.  All billings will be itemized so as to 

specifically identify the costs and expenses for each project for which the City claims 

reimbursement.  A charge for the actual costs incurred in preparing the billing may also be 

included in said billing.  At the City’s option, the billing may be on an annual basis, but the City 

shall provide the Franchisee with the City’s itemization of costs, in writing, at the conclusion of 

each project for information purposes. 

Section 16.  Franchise Fees and Utility Taxes.   

16.1 Franchisee represents that its Services, as authorized under this Franchise, 

are a telephone business as defined in RCW 82.16.010, or that it is a service provider as used in 

RCW 35.21.860 and defined in RCW 35.99.010.  As a result, the City will not impose franchise 

fees under the terms of this Franchise.  The City reserves its right to impose a franchise fee on 

Franchisee if Franchisee’s Services as authorized by this Franchise change such that the statutory 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 39



prohibitions of RCW 35.21.860 no longer apply or if statutory prohibitions on the imposition of 

such fees are otherwise removed.  The City also reserves its right to require that Franchisee obtain 

a separate franchise for a change in use, which franchise may include provisions intended to 

regulate Franchisee’s operations as allowed under applicable law.  Nothing contained within this 

Franchise shall preclude Franchisee from challenging any such new fee or separate agreement 

under applicable federal, State, or local laws. 

16.2 Franchisee acknowledges that its operation with the City constitutes a 

telecommunication business subject to the utility tax imposed pursuant to the Buckley City Code 

Chapter 3.96.  Franchisee stipulates and agrees that certain of its business activities are subject to 

taxation as a telecommunication business and that Franchisee shall pay to the City the rate 

applicable to such taxable services under Buckley City Code Chapter 3.96, and consistent with 

state and federal law.  The parties agree however, that nothing in this Franchise shall limit the 

City's power of taxation as may exist now or as later imposed by the City.  This provision does not 

limit the City's power to amend Buckley City Code Chapter 3.96 as may be permitted by law.   

Section 17.  Indemnification. 

17.1 Franchisee releases, covenants not to bring suit, and agrees to indemnify, 

defend, and hold harmless the City, its officers, employees, agents, and representatives from any 

and all claims, costs, judgments, awards, or liability to any person, for injury or death of any 

person, or damage to property caused by or arising out of any acts or omissions of Franchisee, its 

agents, servants, officers, or employees in the performance of this Franchise and any rights granted 

within this Franchise.   

17.2 Inspection or acceptance by the City of any work performed by Franchisee 

at the time of completion of construction shall not be grounds for avoidance by Franchisee of any 

of its obligations under this Section 17.  These indemnification obligations shall extend to claims 

that are not reduced to a suit and any claims that may be compromised, with Franchisee’s prior 

written consent, prior to the culmination of any litigation or the institution of any litigation. 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 40



17.3 The City shall promptly notify Franchisee of any claim or suit and request in 

writing that Franchisee indemnify the City.  Franchisee may choose counsel to defend the City 

subject to this Section 17.3.  City’s failure to so notify and request indemnification shall not relieve 

Franchisee of any liability that Franchisee might have, except to the extent that such failure 

prejudices Franchisee’s ability to defend such claim or suit. In the event that Franchisee refuses the 

tender of defense in any suit or any claim, as required pursuant to the indemnification provisions 

within this Franchise, and said refusal is subsequently determined by a court having jurisdiction (or 

such other tribunal that the parties shall agree to decide the matter), to have been a wrongful 

refusal on the part of Franchisee, Franchisee shall pay all of the City’s reasonable costs for defense 

of the action, including all expert witness fees, costs, and attorney’s fees, and including costs and 

fees incurred in recovering under this indemnification provision.  If separate representation to fully 

protect the interests of both parties is necessary, such as a conflict of interest between the City and 

the counsel selected by Franchisee to represent the City, then upon the prior written approval and 

consent of Franchisee, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, the City shall have the right to 

employ separate counsel in any action or proceeding and to participate in the investigation and 

defense thereof, and Franchisee shall pay the reasonable fees and expenses of such separate 

counsel, except that Franchisee shall not be required to pay the fees and expenses of separate 

counsel on behalf of the City for the City to bring or pursue any counterclaims or interpleader 

action, equitable relief, restraining order or injunction.  The City’s fees and expenses shall include 

all out-of-pocket expenses, such as consultants and expert witness fees, and shall also include the 

reasonable value of any services rendered by the counsel retained by the City but shall not include 

outside attorneys’ fees for services that are unnecessarily duplicative of services provided the City 

by Franchisee.  Each party agrees to cooperate and to cause its employees and agents to cooperate 

with the other party in the defense of any such claim and the relevant records of each party shall be 

available to the other party with respect to any such defense. 

17.4 The parties acknowledge that this Franchise is subject to RCW 4.24.115.  

Accordingly, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or 

damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of Franchisee and the 

City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, Franchisee’s liability shall be only to the 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 41



extent of Franchisee’s negligence.  It is further specifically and expressly understood that the 

indemnification provided constitutes Franchisee’s waiver of immunity under Title 51 RCW, solely 

for the purposes of this indemnification.  This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties.  

17.5 Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Section 17, Franchisee 

assumes the risk of damage to its Facilities located in the Rights-of-Way and upon City-owned 

property from activities conducted by the City, its officers, agents, employees, volunteers, elected 

and appointed officials, and contractors, except to the extent any such damage or destruction is 

caused by or arises from any grossly negligent, willful, or criminal actions on the part of the City, 

its officers, agents, employees, volunteers, or elected or appointed officials, or contractors.  

Franchisee releases and waives any and all such claims against the City, its officers, agents, 

employees, volunteers, or elected or appointed officials, or contractors.  Franchisee further agrees 

to indemnify, hold harmless and defend the City against any claims for damages, including, but not 

limited to, business interruption damages and lost profits, brought by or under users of 

Franchisee’s Facilities as the result of any interruption of service due to damage or destruction of 

Franchisee’s Facilities caused by or arising out of activities conducted by the City, its officers, 

agents, employees or contractors, except to the extent any such damage or destruction is caused by 

or arises from the sole negligence or any willful, or criminal actions on the part of the City, its 

officers, agents, employees, volunteers, or elected or appointed officials, or contractors.   

17.6 The provisions of this Section 17 shall survive the expiration, revocation, or 

termination of this Franchise. 

Section 18.  Insurance. 

18.1 Franchisee shall procure and maintain for so long as Franchisee has 

Facilities in the Rights-of-Way, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to 

property which may arise from or in connection with the exercise of rights, privileges and 

authority granted to Franchisee, its agents, representatives or employees.  Franchisee shall require 

that every subcontractor maintain insurance coverage and policy limits consistent with this Section 

18.  Franchisee shall procure insurance from insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less 

than A-.  Franchisee shall provide a copy of a certificate of insurance and additional insured 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 42



endorsement to the City for its inspection at the time of or prior to acceptance of this Franchise, 

and such insurance certificate shall evidence a policy of insurance that includes: 

(a) Automobile Liability insurance with limits no less than $2,000,000 

combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.  

(b) Commercial General Liability insurance, written on an occurrence 

basis with limits no less than $3,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence and $5,000,000 

aggregate for personal injury, bodily injury and property damage. Coverage shall include but not 

be limited to: blanket contractual; premises; operations; independent contractors; stop gap liability; 

personal injury; products and completed operations; broad form property damage; explosion, 

collapse and underground (XCU); and employer’s liability.   

(c) Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial 

Insurance laws of the State of Washington.  No deductible is presently required for this insurance; 

and 

(d) Umbrella liability policy with limits not less than $10,000,000 per 

occurrence and in the aggregate. 

18.2 Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved 

by the City. Such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.  The City acknowledges 

that Franchisee’s current deductibles are subject to change based on business needs and the 

commercial insurance market.  Payment of deductible or self-insured retention shall be the sole 

responsibility of Franchisee.  Additionally, Franchisee shall pay all premiums for the insurance on 

a timely basis.  Franchisee may utilize primary and umbrella liability insurance policies to satisfy 

the insurance policy limits required in this Section 18.  Franchisee’s umbrella liability insurance 

policy provides “follow form” coverage over its primary liability insurance policies. 

18.3 The insurance policies, with the exception of Workers’ Compensation 

obtained by Franchisee shall name the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and 

volunteers (“Additional Insureds”), as an additional insured with regard to activities performed by 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 43



or on behalf of Franchisee.  The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of 

protection afforded to the Additional Insureds.  In addition, the insurance policy shall contain a 

clause stating that coverage shall apply separately to each insured against whom a claim is made or 

suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability.  Franchisee shall provide 

to the City prior to or upon acceptance either (1) a true copy of the additional insured endorsement 

for each insurance policy required in this Section 18 and providing that such insurance shall apply 

as primary insurance on behalf of the Additional Insureds or (2) a true copy of the blanket 

additional insured clause from the policies.  Receipt by the City of any certificate showing less 

coverage than required is not a waiver of Franchisee’s obligations to fulfill the requirements. 

Franchisee’s insurance shall be primary insurance with respect to the Additional Insureds, and the 

endorsement should specifically state that the insurance is the primary insurance.  Any insurance 

maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in excess of Franchisee’s insurance and shall not 

contribute with it.  

18.4 Franchisee is obligated to notify the City of any cancellation or intent not to 

renew any insurance policy, required pursuant to this Section 18, thirty (30) days prior to any such 

cancellation.  Within five (5) days prior to said cancellation or intent not to renew, Franchisee shall 

obtain and furnish to the City replacement insurance policies meeting the requirements of this 

Section 18.  Failure to provide the insurance cancellation notice and to furnish to the City 

replacement insurance policies meeting the requirements of this Section 18 shall be considered a 

material breach of this Franchise and subject to the City’s election of remedies described in 

Section 21 below.  Notwithstanding the cure period described in Section 21.1 and 21.2, the City 

may pursue its remedies immediately upon a failure to furnish replacement insurance. 

18.5 Franchisee’s maintenance of insurance as required by this Section 18 shall 

not be construed to limit the liability of Franchisee to the coverage provided by such insurance, or 

otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy available at law or equity.  Further, Franchisee’s 

maintenance of insurance policies required by this Franchise shall not be construed to excuse 

unfaithful performance by Franchisee. 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 44



Section 19.  Abandonment of Franchisee’s Telecommunications Network.  Upon the 

expiration, termination, or revocation of the rights granted under this Franchise, Franchisee shall 

remove all of its Facilities from the Rights-of-Way within ninety (90) days of receiving written 

notice from the Public Works Director or his/her designee.  The Facilities, in whole or in part, may 

not be abandoned by Franchisee without written approval by the City.  Any plan for abandonment 

or removal of Franchisee’s Facilities must be first approved by the Public Works Director or 

his/her designee, and all necessary permits must be obtained prior to such work.  Notwithstanding 

the above, the City may permit Franchisee’s improvements to be abandoned and placed in such a 

manner as the City may prescribe.  Upon permanent abandonment, and Franchisee’s agreement to 

transfer ownership of the Facilities to the City, Franchisee shall submit to the City a proposal and 

instruments for transferring ownership to the City.  Any Facilities that are not permitted to be 

abandoned in place and that are not removed within thirty (30) days of receipt of City’s notice 

shall automatically become the property of the City.  Provided, however, that nothing contained 

within this Section 19 shall prevent the City from compelling Franchisee to remove any such 

Facilities through judicial action when the City has not permitted Franchisee to abandon said 

Facilities in place.  The provisions of this Section 19 shall survive the expiration, revocation, or 

termination of this Franchise. 

Section 20.  Bonds. 

20.1 Franchisee shall furnish a performance bond (“Performance Bond”) written 

by a corporate surety acceptable to the City equal to at least 150% of the estimated value of the 

work and the estimated cost to restore existing improvements as determined by the Public Works 

Director. The Performance Bond shall guarantee the following: (1) timely completion of 

construction; (2) construction in compliance with all applicable plans, permits, technical codes, 

and standards; (3) proper location of the Facilities as specified by the City; (4) restoration of the 

Rights-of-Way and other City properties affected by the construction; (5) submission of as-built 

drawings after completion of construction; and (6) timely payment and satisfaction of all claims, 

demands, or liens for labor, materials, or services provided in connection with the work which 

could be asserted against the City or City property.  Said bond must remain in full force until the 

completion of construction, including final inspection, corrections, and final approval of the work, 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 45



recording of all easements, provision of as-built drawings, and the posting of a Warranty Bond as 

described in Section 20.2.  Compliance with the performance deposit requirements described in the 

Buckley Municipal Code Section 13.35.220 shall satisfy the provisions of this Section 20.1. 

20.2 Franchisee shall furnish a two-year warranty bond (“Warranty Bond”), or 

other surety acceptable to the City, at the time of final acceptance of construction work on the 

Facilities within the Rights-of-Way.  The Warranty Bond amount will be equal to twenty-five 

percent (25%) of the actual construction costs.  The Warranty Bond in this Section 20.2 must be in 

place prior to City’s release of the Performance Bond required by Section 20.1.  Compliance with 

the warranty deposit requirements described in the Buckley Municipal Code Section 13.35.220 

shall satisfy the provisions of this Section 20.2. 

20.3 Franchisee shall provide City with a bond in the amount of Twenty-Five 

Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00) (“Franchise Bond”) running or renewable for the term of this 

Franchise, in a form and substance reasonably acceptable to City. In the event Franchisee shall fail 

to substantially comply with any one or more of the provisions of this Franchise, following written 

notice and a reasonable opportunity to cure, then there shall be recovered jointly and severally 

from Franchisee and the bond any actual damages suffered by City as a result thereof, including 

but not limited to staff time, material and equipment costs, compensation or indemnification of 

third parties, and the cost of removal or abandonment of Facilities.  Franchisee specifically agrees 

that its failure to comply with the terms of this Section 20.3 shall constitute a material breach of 

this Franchise, subject to the notice and cure provisions of Section 21.2.  Franchisee further agrees 

to replenish the Franchise Bond within fourteen (14) days after written notice from the City that 

there is a deficiency in the amount of the Franchise Bond.  The amount of the Franchise Bond shall 

not be construed to limit Franchisee's liability or to limit the City's recourse to any remedy to 

which the City is otherwise entitled at law or in equity. 

Section 21.  Remedies to Enforce Compliance. 

21.1 In addition to any other remedy provided in this Franchise, the City reserves 

the right to pursue any remedy available at law or in equity to compel or require Franchisee and/or 

its successors and assigns to comply with the terms of this Franchise and the pursuit of any right or 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 46



remedy by the City shall not prevent the City from thereafter declaring a revocation for breach of 

the conditions.  In addition to any other remedy provided in this Franchise, Franchisee reserves the 

right to pursue any remedy available at law or in equity to compel or require the City, its officers, 

employees, volunteers, contractors and other agents and representatives, to comply with the terms 

of this Franchise.  Further, all rights and remedies provided herein shall be in addition to and 

cumulative with any and all other rights and remedies available to either the City or Franchisee. 

Such rights and remedies shall not be exclusive, and the exercise of one or more rights or remedies 

shall not be deemed a waiver of the right to exercise at the same time or thereafter any other right 

or remedy.  Provided, further, that by entering into this Franchise, it is not the intention of the City 

or Franchisee to waive any other rights, remedies, or obligations as provided by law, equity or 

otherwise, and nothing contained in this Franchise shall be deemed or construed to affect any such 

waiver.  The parties reserve the right to seek and obtain injunctive relief with respect to this 

Franchise to the extent authorized by applicable law and that the execution of this Franchise shall 

not constitute a waiver or relinquishment of such right.  The parties agree that in the event a party 

obtains injunctive relief, neither party shall be required to post a bond or other security and the 

parties agree not to seek the imposition of such a requirement. 

21.2 If either party violates or fails to comply with any of the provisions of this 

Franchise, or a permit issued as required by Section 8.2, or should it fail to heed or comply with 

any notice given to such party under the provisions of this Franchise (the “Defaulting Party”), the 

other Party (the “Non-defaulting Party”) shall provide the Defaulting Party with written notice 

specifying with reasonable particularity the nature of any such breach and the Defaulting Party 

shall undertake all commercially reasonable efforts to cure such breach within thirty (30) days of 

receipt of notification.  If the Non-defaulting Party reasonably determines the breach cannot be 

cured within thirty (30) days, the Non-defaulting Party may specify a longer cure period, and 

condition the extension of time on the Defaulting Party’s submittal of a plan to cure the breach 

within the specified period, commencement of work within the original thirty (30) day cure period, 

and diligent prosecution of the work to completion. If the breach is not cured within the specified 

time, or the Defaulting Party does not comply with the specified conditions, the Non-defaulting 

Party may pursue any available remedy at law or in equity as provided in Section 21.1 above, or in 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 47



the event Franchisee has failed to timely cure the breach, the City, at its sole discretion, may elect 

to (1) revoke this Franchise pursuant to Section 22, (2) claim damages of Two Hundred Fifty 

Dollars ($250.00) per day against Franchisee (and collect from the Franchise Bond if necessary), 

or (3) extend the time to cure the breach if under the circumstances additional time is reasonably 

required.  Liquidated damages described in this Section 21.2 shall not be offset against any sums 

due to the City as a tax or reimbursement pursuant to Section 15.  Nothing in this Franchise shall 

be construed as limiting any remedies that the City may have, at law or in equity, from 

enforcement of this Franchise.   

Section 22.  Revocation.   

If Franchisee willfully violates or fails to comply with any material provisions of this 

Franchise, then at the election of the Buckley City Council after at least thirty (30) days written 

notice to Franchisee specifying the alleged violation or failure, the City may revoke all rights 

conferred and this Franchise may be revoked by the Council after a hearing held upon such notice 

to Franchisee.  Such hearing shall be open to the public and Franchisee and other interested parties 

may offer written and/or oral evidence explaining or mitigating such alleged noncompliance.  

Within thirty (30) days after the hearing, the Buckley City Council, on the basis of the record, will 

make the determination as to whether there is cause for revocation, whether the Franchise will be 

terminated, or whether lesser sanctions should otherwise be imposed.  The Buckley City Council 

may in its sole discretion fix an additional time period to cure violations.  If the deficiency has not 

been cured at the expiration of any additional time period or if the Buckley City Council does not 

grant any additional period, the Buckley City Council may by resolution declare the Franchise to 

be revoked and forfeited or impose lesser sanctions.  If Franchisee appeals revocation and 

termination, such revocation may be held in abeyance pending judicial review by a court of 

competent jurisdiction, provided Franchisee is otherwise in compliance with the Franchise. 

Section 23.  Non-Waiver.  The failure of either party to insist upon strict performance of 

any of the covenants and agreements of this Franchise or to exercise any option conferred in any 

one or more instances shall not be construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of any such 

covenants, agreements, or option or any other covenants, agreements or option. 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 48



Section 24.  Police Powers and City Regulations.  Nothing within this Franchise shall be 

deemed to restrict the City’s ability to adopt and enforce all necessary and appropriate ordinances 

regulating the performance of the conditions of this Franchise and the franchises of similarly-

situated entities, including any valid ordinance made in the exercise of its police powers in the 

interest of public safety and for the welfare of the public.  The City shall have the authority at all 

times to reasonably control by appropriate regulations, consistent with 47 U.S.C. § 253, the 

location, elevation, manner of construction, and maintenance of any Facilities by Franchisee and 

other similarly-situated franchisees, and Franchisee shall promptly conform with all such 

regulations, unless compliance would cause Franchisee to violate other requirements of law.  The 

City reserves the right to promulgate any additional regulations of general applicability as it may 

find necessary in the exercise of its lawful police powers consistent with 47 U.S.C. § 253.  In the 

event of a conflict between the provisions of this Franchise and any other ordinance(s) enacted 

under the City’s police power authority, such other ordinances(s) shall take precedence over this 

Franchise. 

Section 25.  Cost of Publication.  The cost of publication of this Franchise shall be borne by 

Franchisee. 

Section 26.  Acceptance.  This Franchise may be accepted by Franchisee by its filing with 

the City Clerk of an unconditional written acceptance, within thirty (30) days from the City’s 

execution of this Franchise, in the form attached as Exhibit B.  Failure of Franchisee to so accept 

this Franchise shall be deemed a rejection by Franchisee and the rights and privileges granted shall 

cease.  In addition, Franchisee shall file the certificate of insurance and the additional insured 

endorsements obtained pursuant to Section 18, any Performance Bonds, if applicable, pursuant to 

Section 20.1, and the Franchise Bond required pursuant to Section 20.3, and the costs described in 

Section 15.1. 

Section 27.  Survival.  All of the provisions, conditions, and requirements of Section 5, 

Section 6, Section 7, Section 8, Section 13, Section 14, Section 16,Section 17, Section 18, Section 

19, Section 20, and Section 28 of this Franchise shall be in addition to any and all other obligations 

and liabilities Franchisee may have to the City at common law, by statute, or by contract, and shall 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 49



survive this Franchise, and any renewals or extensions, to the extent provided for in those sections.  

All of the provisions, conditions, regulations, and requirements contained in this Franchise shall 

further be binding upon the successors, executors, administrators, legal representatives, and assigns 

of Franchisee and all privileges, as well as all obligations and liabilities of Franchisee shall inure to 

its successors and assigns equally as if they were specifically mentioned where Franchisee is 

named. 

Section 28.  Changes of Ownership or Control.   

28.1 This Franchise may not be directly or indirectly assigned, transferred, or 

disposed of by sale, lease, merger, consolidation or other act of Franchisee, by operation of law or 

otherwise, unless approved in writing by the City, which approval shall not be unreasonably 

withheld, conditioned or delayed.  The above notwithstanding, Franchisee may freely assign this 

Franchise in whole or in part to a parent, subsidiary, or affiliated entity, unless there is a change of 

control as described in Section 28.2 below, or for collateral security purposes.  Franchisee shall 

provide prompt, written notice to the City of any such assignment.  In the case of transfer or 

assignment as security by mortgage or other security instrument in whole or in part to secure 

indebtedness, such consent shall not be required unless and until the secured party elects to realize 

upon the collateral.  For purposes of this Section 28, no assignment or transfer of this Franchise 

shall be deemed to occur based on the public trading of Franchisee’s stock; provided, however, any 

tender offer, merger, or similar transaction resulting in a change of control shall be subject to the 

provisions of this Franchise. 

28.2 Any transactions that singularly or collectively result in a change of more 

than fifty percent (50%) of the: ultimate ownership or working control of Franchisee, ownership or 

working control of the Facilities, ownership or working control of affiliated entities having 

ownership or working control of Franchisee or of the Facilities, or of control of the capacity or 

bandwidth of Franchisee’s Facilities, shall be considered an assignment or transfer requiring City 

approval.  Transactions between affiliated entities are not exempt from City approval if there is a 

change in control as described in the preceding sentence.  Franchisee shall promptly notify the City 

prior to any proposed change in, or transfer of, or acquisition by any other party of control of 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 50



Franchisee.  Every change, transfer, or acquisition of control of Franchisee shall cause a review of 

the proposed transfer. The City shall approve or deny such request for an assignment or transfer 

requiring City’s consent within one-hundred twenty (120) days of a completed application from 

Franchisee, unless a longer period of time is mutually agreed to by the parties or when a delay in 

the action taken by the City is due to the schedule of the City Council and action cannot reasonably 

be obtained within the one hundred twenty (120) day period.  In the event that the City adopts a 

resolution denying its consent and such change, transfer, or acquisition of control has been 

affected, the City may revoke this Franchise, following the revocation procedure described in 

Section 22 above.  The assignee or transferee must have the legal, technical, financial, and other 

requisite qualifications to own, hold, and operate Franchisee’s Services.  Franchisee shall 

reimburse the City for all direct and indirect costs and expenses reasonably incurred by the City in 

considering a request to transfer or assign this Franchise, in accordance with the provisions of 

Section 15.3 and Section 15.4, and shall pay the applicable application fee.   

28.3 Franchisee may, without prior consent from the City:  (i) lease the Facilities, 

or any portion, to another person; (ii) grant an indefeasible right of user interest in the Facilities, or 

any portion, to another person; or (iii) offer to provide capacity or bandwidth in its Facilities to 

another person, provided further, that Franchisee shall at all times retain exclusive control over its 

Facilities and remain fully responsible for compliance with the terms of this Franchise, and 

Franchisee shall furnish, upon request from the City, a copy of any such lease or agreement, 

provided that Franchisee may redact the name, street address (except for City and zip code), Social 

Security Numbers, Employer Identification Numbers or similar identifying information, and other 

information considered confidential under applicable laws provided in such lease or agreement, 

and the lessee complies, to the extent applicable, with the requirements of this Franchise and 

applicable City codes.  Franchisee’s obligation to remain fully responsible for compliance with the 

terms under this Section 28.3 shall survive the expiration of this Franchise but only if and to the 

extent and for so long as Franchisee is still the owner or has exclusive control over the Facilities 

used by a third party. 

Section 29.  Entire Agreement.  This Franchise constitutes the entire understanding and 

agreement between the parties as to the subject matter within this Franchise and no other 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 51



agreements or understandings, written or otherwise, shall be binding upon the parties upon 

execution of this Franchise. 

Section 30.  Eminent Domain.  The existence of this Franchise shall not preclude the City 

from acquiring by condemnation in accordance with applicable law, all or a portion of 

Franchisee’s Facilities for the fair market value.  In determining the value of such Facilities, no 

value shall be attributed to the right to occupy the area conferred by this Franchise.   

Section 31.  Vacation.  If at any time the City, by ordinance and in accordance with 

applicable laws, vacates all or any portion of the area affected by this Franchise, the City shall not 

be liable for any damages or loss to the Franchisee by reason of such vacation.  The City shall use 

reasonable efforts to reserve an appurtenant easement for public utilities within the vacated portion 

of the Rights-of-Way within which Franchisee may continue to operate existing Facilities under 

the terms of this Franchise for the remaining period of the term set forth in Section 1.1.  

Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the City shall incur no liability for failing to reserve such 

easement.  The City shall notify Franchisee in writing not less than sixty (60) days before vacating 

all or any portion of any such area.  The City may, after sixty (60) days’ written notice to 

Franchisee, terminate this Franchise with respect to such vacated area. 

Section 32.  Notice.  Any notice or information required or permitted to be given to the 

parties under this Franchise shall be sent to the following addresses unless otherwise specified by 

personal delivery, overnight mail by a nationally recognized courier, or by U.S. certified mail, 

return receipt requested and shall be effective upon receipt or refusal of delivery: 

CITY OF BUCKLEY 
Attn: City Clerk 
PO Box 1960 
Buckley WA  98321 
Telephone: 360-829-1921 

Astound Broadband, LLC 
401 Kirkland Parkplace, Suite 500 
Kirkland, WA 98033 
Attn: Steve Weed, CEO and  
Byron Springer, EVP 
Telephone: 425-896-1891 
 

 
Section 33.  Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Franchise 

should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 52



invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other 

section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Franchise unless such invalidity or unconstitutionality 

materially alters the rights, privileges, duties, or obligations, in which event either party may 

request renegotiation of those remaining terms of this Franchise materially affected by such court’s 

ruling. 

Section 34.  Compliance with all Applicable Laws.  Each party agrees to comply with all 

applicable present and future federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations.  This 

Franchise is subject to ordinances of general applicability enacted pursuant to the City’s police 

powers.  The City reserves the right at any time to amend this Franchise to conform to any enacted, 

amended, or adopted federal or state statute or regulation relating to the public health, safety, and 

welfare, or relating to roadway regulation, or a City ordinance enacted pursuant to such federal or 

state statute or regulation, when such statute, regulation, or ordinance necessitates this Franchise 

be amended in order to remain in compliance with applicable laws, but only upon providing 

Franchisee with thirty (30) days’ written notice of its action setting forth the full text of the 

amendment and identifying the statute, regulation, or ordinance requiring the amendment. Said 

amendment shall become automatically effective upon expiration of the notice period unless, 

before expiration of that period, Franchisee makes a written request for negotiations regarding the 

terms of the amendment. If the parties do not reach agreement as to the terms of the amendment 

within thirty (30) days of the call for negotiations, either party may pursue any available remedies 

at law or in equity. 

Section 35.  Attorney Fees.  If a suit or other action is instituted in connection with any 

controversy arising out of this Franchise, each party shall pay all its legal costs and attorney fees 

incurred in defending or bringing such claim or lawsuit, including all appeals, in addition to any 

other recovery or award provided by law; provided, however, nothing in this section shall be 

construed to limit the City’s right to indemnification under Section 17 of this Franchise. 

Section 36.  Hazardous Substances.  Franchisee shall not introduce or use any hazardous 

substances (chemical or waste), in violation of any applicable law or regulation, nor shall 

Franchisee allow any of its agents, contractors, or any person under its control to do the same.  

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 53



Franchisee will be solely responsible for and will defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its officers, 

officials, employees, agents, and volunteers harmless from and against any and all claims, costs, 

and liabilities including reasonable attorney fees and costs, arising out of or in connection with the 

cleanup or restoration of the property to the extent caused by Franchisee’s use, storage, or disposal 

of hazardous substances, whether or not intentional, and the use, storage, or disposal of such 

substances by Franchisee’s agents, contractors, or other persons acting under Franchisee’s control, 

whether or not intentional.  

Section 37.  Licenses, Fees and Taxes.  Prior to constructing any Facilities or providing 

Services within the City, Franchisee shall obtain a business or utility license from the City.  

Franchisee shall pay all applicable taxes on personal property and Facilities owned or placed by 

Franchisee in the Rights-of-Way and shall pay all applicable license fees, permit fees, and any 

applicable tax unless documentation of exemption is provided to the City and shall pay utility taxes 

and license fees properly imposed by the City under this Franchise.   

Section 38.  Miscellaneous. 

38.1 The City and Franchisee respectively represent that their respective 

signatories are duly authorized and have full right, power, and authority to execute this Franchise 

on such party’s behalf. 

38.2 This Franchise shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 

Washington.  The United States District Court for the Western District of Washington, and Pierce 

County Superior Court have proper venue for any dispute related to this Franchise.   

38.3 Section captions and headings are intended solely to facilitate the reading of 

this Franchise.  Such captions and headings shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of the 

text within this Franchise. 

38.4 Where the context so requires, the singular shall include the plural and the 

plural includes the singular. 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 54



38.5 Franchisee shall be responsible for obtaining all other required approvals, 

authorizations, and agreements from any party or entity and it is acknowledged and agreed that the 

City is making no representation, warranty, or covenant whether any of the foregoing approvals, 

authorizations, or agreements are required or have been obtained by Franchisee. 

38.6 This Franchise is subject to all applicable federal, State and local laws, 

regulations and orders of governmental agencies as amended, including but not limited to the 

Communications Act of 1934, as amended, the Telecommunications Act of 1996, as amended and 

the Rules and Regulations of the FCC.  Neither the City nor Franchisee waive any rights they may 

have under any such laws, rules or regulations.   

38.7 There are no third party beneficiaries to this Franchise. 

38.8 This Franchise may be enforced at both law and in equity. 

Section 39.  Corrections by City Clerk or Code Reviser.  Upon approval of the City 

Attorney, the City Clerk and the code reviser are authorized to make necessary corrections to this 

ordinance, including the correction of clerical errors; ordinance, section or subsection numbering; 

or references to other local, state or federal laws, codes, rules, or regulations. 

Section 40.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force five (5) days 

from and after its passage and publication as provided by law. 

 
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY THIS _____ DAY OF 
________________, 2016; AND SIGNED IN AUTHENTICATION OF ITS PASSAGE THIS 
_____ DAY OF _______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________________ 
 Mayor Patricia Johnson 
 
 
Attest: ______________________________________ 

Joanne Starr, City Clerk 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 55



APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
James E. Haney, City Attorney 
 

Vote  Lyn 
Rose  

Cristi 
Boyle 
Barrett 

Marvin 
Sundstrom 

Beau 
Burkett  

John 
Leggett 

Milt 
Tremblay 

Jenney 
Kyllonen  

Ayes:        
Nays:        
Abstentions:        
Absent:        

 
 
PUBLISHED: 
 
EFFECTIVE: 
 
  

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 56



EXHIBIT A 
Page 1 of 2 

 
Services:  Telecommunications services, private line, internet access services, dark fiber services 
and lit fiber services.  
 
Red Line = Aerial Construction 
Yellow Line = Underground Construction 
 
City-wide view. 
 

  

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 57



EXHIBIT A 
Page 2 of 2 

 
Services:  Telecommunications services, private line, internet access services, dark fiber services 
and lit fiber services.  
 
Red Line = Aerial Construction 
Yellow Line = Underground Construction 
 
Enhanced view of Buckley Library location. 
 

 
 

  

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 58



EXHIBIT B 
 

STATEMENT OF ACCEPTANCE 
 
Astound Broadband, LLC d/b/a Wave (“Astound”) for itself, its successors and assigns, accepts 
and agrees to be bound by all lawful terms, conditions and provisions of the Franchise attached and 
incorporated by this reference.  Astound declares that it has carefully read the terms and conditions 
of this Franchise and unconditionally accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Franchise and 
agrees to abide by such terms and conditions.  Astound has relied upon its own investigation of all 
relevant facts and it has not been induced to accept this Franchise and it accepts all reasonable 
risks related to the interpretation of this Franchise. 
 
Astound Broadband, LLC 
 
 
 
By: _____________________  Date: _______________________ 
Name: ____________________ 
Title:   ____________________ 
 
  

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
STATE OF WASHINGTON  ) 
     )SS. 
COUNTY OF  __________________) 
 
I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that ___________________________ is the 
person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he/she signed this instrument, 
on oath stated that he/she was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as the 
___________________________of _______________, to be the free and voluntary act of such 
party for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 
 
DATED:  _______________________________. 
 
Notary Seal 
 

_____________________________________ 
(Signature of Notary) 
 
_____________________________________ 
(Legibly Print or Stamp Name of Notary) 
Notary Public in and for the State of  
Washington 
My appointment expires:  ________________ 

 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 59



From: Fred Miller
To: Dave Schmidt
Cc: "Elana R. Zana"; Byron Springer; "Jake Baldwin"; Dave Eller; Jeffrey Stoner; Jim Penney
Subject: RE: Discount offer for the City of Buckley
Date: Friday, March 25, 2016 4:46:26 PM

Hi Dave,
 
I understand there was a concern regarding the time limitation on our discount offer.  Let me amend
our offer as follows:
 

At any time in the next six years, Wave will offer a 50% discount from our standard
commercial rates to the City of Buckley for services of your choosing: Internet, Ethernet, or
dark fiber, based on our standard service agreements.   This discount will not apply to any
special construction charges, which are based on actual build costs and will be negotiated on
a site by site basis.

 
Standard market prices for these services are dropping, so extending the offer to a six year window
is significant.  Underlying all this is the fact that we have an excellent track record of providing high
capacity services at exceptionally favorable rates for local governments in our service areas.   We
want to be good partners long term, and we’ll do all we can to earn and keep a valued relationship
with the City. 
 
Please let me know if that’s acceptable, and what the next step will be for approval of our franchise
agreement.
 
Thanks,
 
Fred Miller
360.543.5200

 

From: Dave Schmidt [mailto:dschmidt@cityofbuckley.com] 
Sent: Monday, March 21, 2016 8:57 AM
To: Fred Miller
Cc: 'Elana R. Zana'; Byron Springer; 'Jake Baldwin'; Dave Eller; Jeffrey Stoner; Jim Penney
Subject: RE: Discount offer for the City of Buckley
 
Thanks Fred! I’ll ensure that copies of your email are given to the Council. Keep in mind though the
Utilities Committee wasn’t looking at a sunset on this discount.
 

David Schmidt
 
City Administrator
Buckley, WA 98321
(360) 761-7802
 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 60



 
"It's not what you look at that matters, it's what you see.”
 

From: Fred Miller [mailto:fmiller@wavebroadband.com] 
Sent: Friday, March 18, 2016 1:30 PM
To: Dave Schmidt (dschmidt@cityofbuckley.com)
Cc: Elana R. Zana; Byron Springer; Jake Baldwin; Dave Eller; Jeffrey Stoner; Jim Penney
Subject: Discount offer for the City of Buckley
 

Thanks again for your help with our telecommunications franchise.   We understand the 2nd Council
hearing is scheduled for Tuesday, 3/22. 
 
Wave’s new fiber network will be a significant economic resource for the businesses and
organizations in the City of Buckley.  Government entities receive rates discounted lower than
standard commercial rates.   At any time in the next three years, Wave will offer a 50% discount
from our standard commercial rates to the City of Buckley for services of your choosing: Internet,
Ethernet, or dark fiber, based on our standard service agreements.   This discount will not apply to
any special construction charges, which are based on actual build costs and will be negotiated on a
site by site basis.
 
Our government sales team is cc’d on this email.  They will be in contact with you soon.
 
Have a great weekend. 
 
Fred Miller
Business Development

wave
360.543.5200
 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 61



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date:     April 12, 2016               AB16-051 
  
Agreement - TSA Between Buckley 
& Carbonado for WWTP Lab 
Services 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt X X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Joanne Starr  X 
Finance Dept  – Sheila Bazzar   

Cost Impact: N/A Building Official – Mike Deadmond   
Fund Source:  N/A Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Timeline:  N/A Parks & Rec Dept – Ellen Boyd   
 Planning Dept – Kathy Thompson   
 Police Dept – Chief Arsanto   
 Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
Attachments: Technical Services Agreement 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: The City of Buckley WWTP staff has been providing laboratory testing 
services to the Town of Carbonado for many years. This service has been provided through verbal 
agreement and the City bills Carbonado on a monthly basis for the services performed. In order to 
memorialize this relationship the two Mayors have agreed to presenting a formal Agreement to their 
respective legislating bodies for consideration. 
 
The WWTP Supervisor has carefully considered the City’s cost to perform these services and staff has 
included a 5% administrative overhead charge for costs, which are all reflected in the draft being 
presented for consideration.  
 
Staff is requesting and recommending that Council approve this Agreement. 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: None 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOVE to Approve the Technical Services Agreement 
Between Buckley & Carbonado for WWTP Lab Services. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 62



 
TECHNICAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 

 
Between: City of Buckley and Town of Carbonado 
For: Lab Testing Services 

I. PURPOSE 

This Agreement is made and entered into by City of Buckley, Washington ("City of Buckley"), by 
and through its Wastewater Treatment Section of the Public Works Department (“WWPW”) and 
Town of Carbonado (the “Service Recipient”) collectively referred to as the "Parties." This 
Agreement provides the terms under which the City of Buckley will perform work for the Service 
Recipient as summarized  in II A. below, and as more particularly described in  the Scope of Work in 
Exhibit One, attached to this Agreement and incorporated herein and made a part hereof. 

I. TERMS 
A. Description of service provided by the City of Buckley 

Provide laboratory testing services as described in Exhibit One. 

B. Administration 

1. Each Party shall appoint a representative to manage the Project.  The name of each 
representative is provided in Exhibit One of this Agreement.  

2. In the event that a dispute arises under this Agreement, it shall be referred for resolution to 
the Buckley City Administrator, or other representative as designated by the City, and a staff 
person designated by the Service Recipient signatory to this Agreement.  This provision shall 
not be construed as prohibiting either Party from seeking enforcement of the terms of this 
Agreement, or relief or remedy from a breach of the terms of this Agreement, in law or in 
equity. 

C. Responsibilities 

1. The City of Buckley shall perform the work described in the Scope of Work in Exhibit One. 

2. The Service Recipient shall pay for the work described in Exhibit One and make payments in 
accordance with the terms of Section D. below. 

D. Billing and Payment 

1. The Service Recipient shall pay the City of Buckley up to the amount stated in Section C.2. 
above for actual costs incurred to perform work as described in Exhibit One. 

2. The City of Buckley shall include the charges billed to the Service Recipient on an itemized 
invoice and provide the invoice to the Service Recipient. 

3. The Service Recipient will make payment to the City of Buckley for invoiced amounts within 
sixty (60) days. 

4. The Parties represent that funds for service provision under this Agreement have been 
appropriated and are available. To the extent that such service provision requires future 
appropriations beyond current appropriation authority, each of the Parties’ obligations are 
contingent upon the appropriation of sufficient funds by that Party’s legislative authority to 
complete the activities described herein. If no such appropriation is made for either Party, this 
Agreement will terminate at the close of the appropriation year for which the last 
appropriation that funds these activities was made.  

 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 63



E. Effectiveness and Duration 

1. This Agreement is effective upon signature by both Parties and shall remain in effect until 
December 31, 2017, unless terminated as set forth in Section H. of this Agreement. 

2. This Agreement may be amended, altered, clarified, or extended only by the written 
agreement of the Parties hereto.   

3. This Agreement is not assignable by either Party, either in whole or in part. 

4. This Agreement is a complete expression of the intent of the Parties and any oral or written 
representations or understandings not incorporated herein are excluded.  The Parties 
recognize that time is of the essence in the performance of the provisions of this Agreement.  
Waiver of any default shall not be deemed to be waiver of any subsequent default.  Waiver of 
breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other or 
subsequent breach and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of the 
Agreement unless stated to be such through written approval by the Parties which shall be 
attached to the original Agreement.   

F. Indemnification  

To the maximum extent allowable by law, the Service Recipient shall protect, defend, indemnify, 
and save harmless the City of Buckley, its officers, officials, employees, and agents, while acting 
within the scope of their employment, from any and all costs, claims, judgments, penalties, and/or 
awards of damages, arising out of or in any way resulting from the Service Recipient’s own 
negligent acts or omissions in performing its obligations pursuant to this Agreement.  To the 
maximum extent allowable by law, the City of Buckley shall protect, defend, indemnify, and save 
harmless the Service Recipient, its officers, officials, employees, and agents, while acting within 
the scope of their employment, from any and all costs, claims, judgments, penalties, and/or 
awards of damages, arising out of or in any way resulting from the City of Buckley’s own 
negligent acts or omissions in performing its obligations pursuant to this Agreement.  Each Party 
agrees that its obligations under this subparagraph extend to any claim, demand, and/or cause of 
action brought by, or on behalf of, any of its employees or agents.  For this purpose, each Party, 
by mutual negotiation, hereby waives, with respect to the other Party only, any immunity that 
would otherwise be available against such claims under the Industrial Insurance provisions of 
Title 51 RCW.  In the event that a Party incurs any judgment, award, and/or cost arising 
therefrom, including attorneys’ fees, to enforce the provisions of this Article, all such fees, 
expenses, and costs shall be recoverable from the responsible Party to the extent of that Party’s 
culpability.  The indemnifications provided for in this Section F. shall survive the termination of 
this Agreement. 

G. Reporting obligation 

Should the City of Buckley perform laboratory testing under this Agreement, its sole reporting 
obligations under the terms of this Agreement are to provide the results of the laboratory 
analytical services to the Service Recipient.  The Parties agree that the City of Buckley's reporting 
obligations do not extend to any third party, including any regulatory agency that may seek to 
obtain or require the results of laboratory analyses.  The Parties further agree that any reporting 
obligations that may exist with regard to third parties, including regulatory agencies, shall remain 
solely the responsibility of the Service Recipient.  The City of Buckley shall have no liability for 
any failure to meet any existing reporting requirements and the Service Recipient agrees to 
defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City of Buckley for any damages, suits or claims by 
third parties related to the failure to report the results of the laboratory analyses. 

  

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 64



 

H. Termination 

Either Party may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other 
party.  If this Agreement is so terminated, the parties shall be liable only for performance 
rendered or costs incurred in accordance with the terms of this Agreement prior to the effective 
date of termination. 

I. Counterparts 

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts. 

 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this agreement on this  _____ day of 

_________________, 201__. 

 

Town of Carbonado               City of Buckley  
 
 
              
By:                                   Dave Schmidt, City Administrator  
 
 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED   ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED 
 
 
               
By:                                                                Joanne Star, City Clerk  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM    APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
              
Carbonado City Attorney    Buckley City Attorney  
  

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 65



EXHIBIT ONE 
SCOPE OF WORK & BUDGET 

 
 
Project Purpose/Description 
 
Laboratory analysis of influent and effluent samples related to NPDES permit compliance 
testing.  Testing methods must comply with current NPDES requirements. 
 
Service Contacts for this project 

• For City of Buckley:  Jim Doty 
• For the Service Recipient: __________________________ 

 
Scope of Work 
TASK TITLE DESCRIPTION PRODUCT TO BE 

DELIVERED DATE OF COMPLETION  COST 

Influent and 
Effluent 
Weekly 
testing 

Weekly and Bi-weekly testing of Influent 
and Effluent samples for the following 
parameters only: Fecal Coliform, Total 
Ammonia, Total Suspended Solids (TSS), 
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD), 
Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen 
Demand (COD), 

Lab Analysis 
Report 

Report to be sent to 
recipient as soon as 
practical following the 
end of the month. 

$297.97 /wk 
including 
Admin Fee 

 
 The City of Buckley will ensure testing is performed by a laboratory having Washington State 

Environmental Laboratory Accreditation. 
 The City of Buckley will provide field sheets. 
 Town of Carbonado staff will collect, package and ship or transport the sample(s), using appropriate 

collection, chain of custody documentation and shipping techniques.  All sampling events will be 
conducted on mutually agreed upon dates. 

 Analysis results will be available within 30 days of receipt of the sample by the City of Buckley 
Environmental Laboratory. 

 The Environmental Laboratory will prepare a Lab Analysis Report consisting of a Comprehensive 
Data Report (standard laboratory format) available as hardcopy and / or PDF file; a cover letter 
describing analytical anomalies if any occurred; and copies of associated laboratory QC data.   

 
Budget Estimate 
Total estimated cost(s) for above task(s) is/ are as outlined below.  City of Carbonado will be billed on 
actual costs to perform tasks, not to exceed the budget amount in the Grand Total box for the cost(s) 
described in the budget table below. 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 66



Budget Estimate Table 
 

 

 
 

• For the purposes of this agreement, TSS tests run on both Influent and Effluent Samples collected on the same date, shall count 
for billing purposes as one test. 

• For the purposes of this agreement, BOD tests run on both Influent and Effluent Samples collected on the same date, shall count 
for billing purposes as one test. 
 

 
 Method 

 
 
Sample Frequency Labor Supplies Labor Total 

    
(Hours) 

   
        
Fecal Coliform 

SM 9222 D (m-FC)-
97 Effluent Composite Weekly 1 $9.51 $55.00 $64.51 

Total Ammonia 
SM 4500-NH3 F-97 
(*1) Effluent Grab Bi-Weekly 0.5 $7.30 $27.50 $34.80 

Total Suspended 
Solids SM 2540 D-97 Influent and Effluent Composite Weekly 1 $11.01 $55.00 $66.01 
BOD Test SM 5210 B-01 Influent and Effluent Composite Weekly 1 $5.41 $55.00 $60.41 
COD Test SM 5210 B-01 Effluent Composite Weekly 1 $3.07 $55.00 $58.07 

 
(*1 ) Hach TNT 830 

      Subtotal Weekly 
      

$283.80 
Administration Fee 5% of Monthly Total 

 
Weekly 

   
$14.19 

Total Weekly       $297.97 
        
Average Per Month Cost 

     
$1,291.20 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 67



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date:     April 12, 2016               AB16-052 
  
Bid Award:  Realignment Phase II 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt X X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Joanne Starr  X 
Finance Dept  – Sheila Bazzar   

Cost Impact: $1,815,421.05 Building Official – Mike Deadmond   
Fund Source:  Fund 102 & Grants Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Timeline:  Immediate Parks & Rec Dept – Ellen Boyd   
 Planning Dept – Kathy Thompson   
 Police Dept – Chief Arsanto   
 Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
Attachments: Memo, Bid Tabs & Engineer Letter 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: The information being presented for consideration is the bid tabulations for 
Phase II of the SR410/SR165/RyanRd/112thStE Realignment Project. This is the final phase of a two-
phase project which will improve the safety and function of our “malfunction junction”.  Phase 1 was 
constructed in 2011 and it realigned Ryan Road and 112th Street to connect at a temporary intersection at 
SR165. 
 
As you can see the apparent low bidder for the project is Johansen Excavating with a bid of 
$1,815,421.05.Therefore staff is recommending that the City Council award bid of the project to 
Johansen Excavating for $1,815,421.05. 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: None 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to Approve Bid Award of Phase II of the 
SR410/SR165/RyanRd/112thStE Realignment Project to Johansen 
Excavating for a Total of $1,815,421.05 subject to WSDOT and TIB 
Approval. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 68



City of Buckley 
P.O. Box 1960, Buckley WA  98321 
Phone: 360-829-1921 ext 200 
Fax: 360-829-2659       

Memo 
To:        Mayor & City Council 

Date:    April 7, 2016 

RE:       Project: SR410/SR165/RyanRd/112thStE Realignment Project (Phase II) 

On April 7, 2016, G&O Engineers and staff conducted a sealed bid opening for the 
construction of Phase II of the SR410/SR165/RyanRd/112thStE Realignment Project. This is 
the final phase of a two-phase project which will improve the safety and function of our 
“dysfunction junction.”  Phase 1 was constructed in 2011 and it realigned Ryan Road and 
112th Street to connect at a temporary intersection at SR165. 

Phase 2 adds a traffic signal at the intersection of SR410 and SR165.  It realigns SR165 to 
intersect SR410 at a “tee” intersection. It improves the alignment of the SR165/Ryan Rd/112th 
Street intersection. It adds street lighting on Ryan Road, 112th Street and SR165.  It adds 
pedestrian improvements on SR165 between Ryan Road and SR410.  It realigns a portion of 
the Foothills Trail so that trail users may cross SR165 via a protected place at the new traffic 
signal.  It realigns River Avenue to connect to Ryan Road at a “Tee” intersection.  The City has 
received substantial grant funding for both phases of this project.  The construction of the 
Phase 2 project is expected to occur from May to November this year.   

Construction cost estimates for the project were provided by the engineer as follows; 

Engineer Estimate both Schedules - Phase II Realignment              $1,482,300.00 

The bids received for construction of Phase II are attached under the Engineer’s Bid 
Tabulations. 

The apparent low bidder for the project is Johansen Excavating with a bid of $1,815,421.05, 
which is $333,121.05 or 22% over engineering estimates. The City engineer will provide a 
letter explaining the difference in cost between the engineering estimate and bid price.  

Funding for the project is illustrated in the Table below: 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 69



TOTAL  PROJECT COST - Breakdown 
 Design Engineering $174,940.00 

Right-of-way $0.00 
Construction Engineering $265,500.00 
Other PSE IntoLight street lights at intersections $157,716.00 
Contract Amount *(Less $500 for ineligible record drawings) $1,814,921.00 

 
Total Project Cost $2,413,077.00 

 
   
  TOTAL FUNDING 

 WA State TIB Grant $603,755.00 
Federal Funding - WSDOT $1,595,455.00 
 Total Grant Funding $2,199,210.00 
 

  Funding Shortfall - City Local Cost $213,867.00 
 
Based on the funding analysis the City’s out-of-pocket for this phase of the project will be 
$213,867. Currently the Street Capital Account has a cash balance of $701,507, which is more 
than adequate to cover the cost difference. However, we have also requested additional 
funding from TIB to cover the higher bid costs. There are two potential pools of money from 
which TIB could award additional funding so our chances are very good that that City’s match 
amount will be reduced.    
 
Therefore based on the analysis it looks like we can and should move forward with the project.  
 
Staff is recommending and requesting that the council award the bid for Phase II of the 
SR410/SR165/RyanRd/112thStE Realignment Project to Johansen Excavating for the amount 
of $1,815,421.05 subject to WSDOT and TIB approval.  
 
If you have any questions, please give a call. Thanks. 
 
Dave 
 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 70



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 71



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 72



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 73



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 74



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 75



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 76



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 77



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 78



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date:     April 12, 2016               AB16-053 
  
Temporary Waiver of Trailer 
Regulations BMC 11.48.0303(1) 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt X X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Joanne Starr  X 
Finance Dept  – Sheila Bazzar   

Cost Impact: N/A Building Official – Mike Deadmond   
Fund Source:  N/A Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Timeline:  N/A Parks & Rec Dept – Ellen Boyd   
 Planning Dept – Kathy Thompson   
 Police Dept – Chief Arsanto   
 Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
Attachments: BMC 11.48 highlighted 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: Due to the White River Bridge closure beginning April 15 some of the City 
staff have requested that they be allowed to pull their RV’s onto City facilities such as the Police Station 
parking lot and/or WWTP as temporary living quarters during the closure period. However, BMC 11.48 
currently prohibits the parking of trailers on public property for more than 8 consecutive hours in any 3 
day period. In order to offer accommodation we are requesting that the City Council authorize a 
temporary waiver from this prohibition during the period of 10 p.m. Friday, April 15 to noon Saturday, 
April 23.  
 
Any temporary waiver should be conditioned on each party getting approval from the by the Chief of 
Police before parking the RV. 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: None 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOVE to Authorize a Temporary Waiver from the 
prohibition identified in BMC 11.48.030(1) for the period of 10 p.m. Friday, 
April 15 to noon Saturday, April 23 subject to the conditions that the RV 
cannot block the public right-of-way and the individual must obtain approval 
from the Police Chief before parking the RV. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 79



 Chapter 11.48 

TRAILERS 

Sections: 
11.48.010    Chapter purpose. 
11.48.020    Definitions. 
11.48.030    Parking – Permit. 
11.48.040    Property owners not to allow parking without permit. 
11.48.050    Removal of wheels. 
11.48.055    Violation – Penalty. 

11.48.010 Chapter purpose. 
This chapter and the enforcement thereof is deemed expedient to maintain the peace, good government and welfare 
of the city and its trade, commerce and manufacture, and is necessary as a sanitary measure and for the proper 
safeguarding of the public health, safety and morals. (Ord. 14-08 § 1, 2008; Ord. 726 § 1, 1966). 

11.48.020 Definitions. 
Words used in this chapter are defined as follows: 

(1) “Person” means person, firm, corporation, partnership or association.

(2) “Police chief” means the police chief of the city of Buckley.

(3) “Trailer camp” or “trailer park” means any site, lot, field or tract of ground upon which two or more trailer
coaches are placed, and includes any building, structure, tent, vehicle, or enclosure used or intended for use as a part
of the equipment of such camp.

(4) “Trailer coach” means any vehicle or structure, including but not limited to campers, trailers and motor homes,
used or maintained for use as a conveyance upon highways or city streets, so designed and constructed as to permit
occupancy thereof as a temporary dwelling or sleeping place for one or more persons and having no other
foundation than wheels or jacks. This definition does not apply to equipment owned and operated by the armed
forces of the United States. (Ord. 14-08 § 1, 2008; Ord. 726 § 2, 1966).

11.48.030 Parking – Permit. 
It is unlawful for any person in possession of a trailer coach: 

(1) To allow the trailer coach to stand upon any public property, including roads, alleys, parks and public parking
lots within the city limits, for more than eight hours in any three-day period; 

(2) To use or allow the use of the trailer coach for living and/or sleeping quarters upon any private property within
the city limits except in a trailer camp duly licensed as such in accordance with applicable regulations of the state,
county and city; provided, however, that a trailer coach may be lawfully parked for use and occupancy on private
property for a period not to exceed 14 consecutive days, and not to exceed 28 days in one calendar year, if the
person in possession of the trailer coach obtains written permission from the owner of the private property prior to
occupancy and if the person obtains a permit from the chief of police within one day of such occupancy.

(3) The parking fee for a trailer coach permit shall be established by resolution of the city council. (Ord. 14-08 § 1,
2008; Ord. 9-97 § 1, 1997; Ord. 9-91 § 1, 1991; Ord. 726 § 3, 1966).

11.48.040 Property owners not to allow parking without permit. 
It is unlawful for the owner, person in possession or having control of any private property situated within the city 
limits to permit a trailer coach, when at any time used for commercial, living and/or sleeping quarters, to be parked 
on such private property, unless and until the person in possession of such trailer coach shall have exhibited to such 
owner, person in possession or having control of such private property a written permit therefor, signed by the chief 
of police. (Ord. 14-08 § 1, 2008; Ord. 726 § 4, 1966). 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 80



11.48.050 Removal of wheels. 
Any removal or partial removal of wheels of a trailer coach, except for temporary purposes of repair, or other action 
to attach a trailer coach to the ground by means of posts, piers, foundation or skirting shall subject the trailer coach 
to the requirements of the city building code as well as this chapter. (Ord. 14-08 § 1, 2008; Ord. 726 § 5, 1966). 

11.48.055 Violation – Penalty. 
Any person violating the provisions of this chapter shall be deemed to have committed a civil infraction and shall be 
subject to a penalty as provided in Chapter 1.04 BMC. (Ord. 14-08 § 1, 2008). 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 81



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date:  April 12 , 2016       AB16-054 
  
Zoo Trek Authority Ballot 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt   
City Attorney (Land) – Phil Olbrechts   
City Attorney – Kristin Eick   
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Joanne Starr  X 
Finance Dept  – Sheila Bazzar   

 Building Official – Mike Deadmond   
Cost Impact:  0 Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Fund Source:   Parks & Rec Dept – Ellen Boyd   
Timeline:   Planning Dept – Kathy Thompson   
 Police Dept – Chief Arsanto   
  Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
Attachments:        
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  The Zoo Trek Authority is requesting the Council’s vote for Position Two 
of the Zoo and Trek Authority Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to nominate __________________ for 
Position Two of the Zoo and Trek Authority Board.  

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 82



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 83



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 84



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 85



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT: Agenda Date:     April 12, 2016 AB16-055 

Lease Agreement Termination – 
Del’s Farm & Feed 

Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt X X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller 
City Clerk – Joanne Starr X 
Finance Dept  – Sheila Bazzar 

Cost Impact: N/A Building Official – Mike Deadmond 
Fund Source:  N/A Fire Dept – Chief Predmore 
Timeline:  N/A Parks & Rec Dept – Ellen Boyd 

Planning Dept – Kathy Thompson 
Police Dept – Chief Arsanto 
Municipal Court – Jessica Cash 

Attachments: Memo, Lease Agreement & Letter from Tractor Supply 

SUMMARY STATEMENT: See attached memorandum. 

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Full Council 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOVE to Authorize the Mayor and City 
Administrator to Negotiate with Tractor Supply for Early Termination of the 
Lease Agreement for the City Building at 117 N. River Ave without Penalty.

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date Action Vote 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 86



City of Buckley 
P.O. Box 1960, Buckley WA  98321 
Phone: 360-829-1921 ext 200 
Fax: 360-829-2659       

Memo 
To:        Mayor & City Council 

From:   City Administrator

Date:    April 7, 2016 

RE:       Lease Agreement Termination – Del’s Farm & Feed 

As discussed at the City Council work session on April 5, 2016, the City received a letter from 
a representative of Tractor Supply Co. on March 23, 2016 notifying the City that Del’s Farm & 
Feed will be closing on April 15, 2016 and relocating to the new Tractor Supply Store being 
constructed in Enumclaw. 

This notice came after the City Administrator contacted Tractor Supply after hearing rumors 
that the store would be closing. The letter indicates that Tractor Supply plans to completely 
vacate the property by May 15, 2016; however the current lease runs through December, 
2016. Termination provisions are outlined in paragraph 20 of the Agreement which states 
“The Lessee shall have the right to terminate this Lease before the expiration of the term set forth in 
paragraph 3 above, by giving 24 months prior notice to the City in writing of the date of termination of 
the Lease. The Lessor may terminate this Lease by giving 24 months advance notice in writing to the 
Lessee of the termination date.” Therefore, per terms of the Agreement, both parties “must” 
notify the other 24 months in advance of termination. This technically means that Tractor 
Supply is responsible for payment of the lease amount through December, 2016 whether they 
are occupying the building or not.  

Current lease for the building as of January 1, 2016 consists of a “base lease” which is 
$1,988.07 per month plus State leasehold excise tax amount of 12.84% or $255.27 for a 
monthly total of $2,243.34. If Tractor Supply vacates the building in May then they would be 
responsible for the lease payment through December which would total $15,703.38. 

However, as disclosed to the Council we already have 5 separate requests from interested 
parties wanting to lease the building for continued use as a local farm and feed store. Since 
Tractor Supply legally has the building tied up through December, the City doesn’t have the 
ability to consider alternatives unless we are able to negotiate some type of early termination 
with Tractor Supply.  

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 87



Therefore, I am requesting that the City Council authorize the Mayor and me to negotiate 
with Tractor Supply for early termination of the lease without penalty. That would allow the 
City to obtain a formal market appraisal and formally advertise the building for lease as of a 
fixed date under an RFP or RFI. In addition, this will allow the City Council time and 
opportunity to quickly establish criteria for a selection process since there are so many 
interested parties.  
 
Thank you. 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 88



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 89



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 90



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 91



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 92



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 93



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 94



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 95



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 96



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 97



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 98



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 99



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 100



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 101



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 102



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 103



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 104



City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 105



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 106



   
City Council 

March 22, 2016 
 

 
 
Mayor Johnson called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 7:00 PM.  
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Sundstrom, Rose, Leggett, 
Kyllonen, Burkett and Boyle Barrett. Also in attendance were City Administrator 
Schmidt, Police Chief Arsanto, City Planner Thompson, Finance Director Bazzar, and 
City Clerk Starr. 
 
Council member Kyllonen moved to excuse Council member Tremblay.  Council 
member Boyle Barrett seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Mayor Johnson stated that she would like to move the Staff Reports to the end of the 
Agenda after the Consent Agenda.    
 
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to approve the Amended Agenda.  Council 
member Rose seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
 
Brett Stevens – 1607 Spaulding Circle, Buckley, WA 98321 – 
Brett Stevens stated that he would like to purchase the property adjacent to his property 
that the City owns but thinks that the value that the City has placed on it is unreasonable.  
He would like the Council to reconsider the price on the property.  Brett Stevens was 
made aware that he is welcome to attend the Transportation & Utilities Committee 
meetings.    
 
MAIN AGENDA 
 
WSDOT Presentation – SR410 Bridge Closure: 
WSDOT personal provided a short presentation regarding their upcoming closure 
of the White River Bridge.   
 
Presentation – White River School District FFA Debate Team:   
The White River School District FFA Debate Team presented the debate they will 
present at the State competition. 
 
ORD No.   -16: Astound Broadband, LLC Franchise Agreement – 2nd 
Reading/Adoption:   
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to postpone this motion sending it back to 
committee and bringing it forward to the second meeting in April or the first 
meeting in May.  Council member Kyllonen seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 107



  
 
 
ORD No. 09-16: Adopting New 2016 Stormwater Management Program:   
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to Approve ORD No. 09-16 Adopting an 
updated 2016 Stormwater Management Program.  Council member Rose seconded 
the motion.  Upon roll call vote motion carried 6/0. 
 
RES No. 16-05: City’s Intent to Conduct a Public Hearing Re Assumption of TBD: 
Council member Rose moved to Approve RES No. 16-05 Regarding the City’s 
Intent to Conduct a Public Hearing for Assumption of the TBD.  Council member 
Leggett seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Lease Agreement – Addendum #4 to Doxa (“SoZo”) Crossfit, LLC Lease:  
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to Approve Addendum #4 to the Agreement 
between the City and Doxa (SoZo) Crossfit LLC for Lease of the old Fire Station.  
Council member Leggett seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Agreement – PD Building Expansion and Remodeling Feasibility – Addendum #1: 
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to Approve Addendum #1 to the Agreement 
for Public Safety Building Expansion and Remodeling Feasibility Study.  Council 
member Leggett seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Selection of Financial Institute for Banking Services:  
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to Approve the Selection of US Bank to 
provide Banking Services to the City.  Council member Leggett seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Council Member Boyle Barrett moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Council 
member Leggett seconded to motion. Motion carried. 
 

Approve Minutes of March 8, 2016 City Council Study Session. 
 
Claim check numbers 54295 through 54324, in the amount of 
$143,293.93, for the period of March 9, 2016 through March 22, 2016 are 
hereby approved and ordered paid this 22nd day of March 2016. 

 
STAFF REPORTS 
City Clerk Starr stated that the Council packets are now being posted electronically to the 
website. 
 
City Administrator Schmidt stated that as most are aware, construction of the skate park 
has been started.  Regarding the North Parking Lot project, the tentative schedule is going 
to try to be finished before the Junior Log show in June.  Also, the City is still working 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 108



on the water situation and continuing to flush the system, and complaints have dropped 
considerably.   We are making sure that the website is updated anytime there is an update 
on the water quality. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Mayor’s Report:  Mayor Johnson stated she was in Washington DC last week and it was 
very informative.  She also discussed the current homeless situation that is going on in 
the nation as well as within the City of Buckley.  Also, she and Recreational Services 
Director Boyd have been talking about putting together concerts in the park for this 
summer, and the goal is going to be 3 or 4 in August.  We have heard from Olympia that 
they are going to possibly be cutting services such as the Public Works Trust Fund, 
MRSC, and the Police Academy. 
 
Administration, Finance & Public Safety:  Council member Boyle Barrett stated that 
Assistant Chief Skogen stated that Carbonado has signed the AMR Contract, but they are 
still waiting on the others to sign.  All other topics that were discussed were on tonight’s 
agenda. 
 
Transportation & Utilities:  Council member Sundstrom stated that the minutes that 
Council member Tremblay provided were what the Committee discussed.  Council 
member Sundstrom also stated that he added comments regarding the Commercial 
Impact Fees. 
 
Community Services: Council member Rose stated they will be meeting April 21st at the 
Multi-Purpose Center at 4:00 PM. 
 
Council Member Comments & Good of the Order:  
Council member Kyllonen stated that the Youth Center is having their annual Spring 
Fling Benefit Auction on Saturday, April 23rd.  Council member Sundstrom stated that 
his Stormwater Conference wasn’t the same as in the past, but he received some useful 
information.   
 
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to adjourn.  Council member Rose seconded 
the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
With nothing further the meeting was adjourned at 8:36 PM. 
 
 
 
 
Mayor       City Administrator 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 109



CITY COUNCIL 
 

STUDY SESSION 
 

April 5, 2016 
 

ATTENDEES:  Council members Sundstrom, Rose, Burkett, Leggett, Tremblay and Kyllonen.  
Also in attendance were Mayor Johnson, City Administrator Schmidt and Kimberly Lauk 
representing the City of Enumclaw. 
  
Mayor Pro Tem Tremblay called the Study Session to order at 7:00 PM. 
 
Dangerous Dog Survey: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Tremblay opened the Study Session by going around the table and asking each 
Council member to provide input on the Dangerous Dog Survey.  After each Council member 
provided input, it appeared that the Council did not want to send out a survey to the citizens of 
Buckley.   
 
Joint City Committee – Buckley & Enumclaw: 
 
Kimberly Lauk, a member of the Enumclaw City Council, shared a future vision statement that 
she and the City of Enumclaw City Council drafted at their last Council meeting.  They envision 
a joint committee between the two cities to share ideas, common issues and goals.  Mayor Pro 
Tem Tremblay and other Council members thought this was a great idea, and the next steps 
will be deciding how many Council members from each jurisdiction will be on the committee as 
well as dates and times for meetings. 
 
Procedure and Process for Lease of the Feed Store: 
 
After a long discussion regarding the lease of Del’s Feed Store, the Council stated that they 
would like to see this topic on the next Council Agenda. 
 
Splash Park: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Tremblay stated that the pictures provided to the Council regarding the future 
splash park were not at all what he had in mind; other Council members thought the same.  
Council members shared pictures of splash parks in other jurisdictions which were more along 
the lines of what they had in mind, and they were able to give City Administrator Schmidt 
ideas for what they would like AHBL to design. 
 
In regards to the upcoming closure of the White River Bridge, City Administrator Schmidt 
asked the Council for input on allowing city employees to bring campers/RVs and park them on 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 110



City property during the week the bridge is closed so they don’t have to commute around.  The 
Council didn’t have an issue with this as it will be a short term situation. 
 
With nothing further, the Study Session was adjourned at 8:26 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City Administrator Dave Schmidt   Mayor Pat Johnson 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 111



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 04-12-2016 Page 112


	Packet #1
	Council Agenda 4-12-2016
	CITY OF BUCKLEY MEETING LIST - Apr-May 2016
	Calendar - April 2016
	April 2016

	Calendar - May 2016
	A. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
	B. STAFF REPORTS
	C. MAIN AGENDA
	Agenda Bill 16-048 (Public Hearing - City Assumption of Rights, Powers, Functions & Obligations of TBD)
	City Attorney – Kristin Eick
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date



	AI #1 - Public Hearing Notice - Assuming the TBD
	Agenda Bill 16-049 (ORD No. __-16 - City Assumption of Rights, Powers, Functions & Obligations of TBD)
	City Attorney – Kristin Eick
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date



	AI #2(a) - ORD No. ___-16 - City's Assumption of TBD (final)
	AI #2(b) - Memo (Mayor & Council) City Assumption of Rights, Powers, Functions & Obligations of TBD

	Packet #2
	Agenda Bill 16-050 (ORD ___-16 - Astound Broadband Franchise Agreement - Adoption)
	City Attorney – W. Scott Snyder
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date



	AI #3(a) - ORD No. __-16 - Franchise Agreement with Astound Broadband (Final to Council)
	Section 1.   Franchise Granted.
	1.1 Pursuant to RCW 35A.47.040, the city of Buckley, a Washington municipal corporation (the “City”), grants to Franchisee, its successors, legal representatives and assigns, subject to the terms and conditions set forth below, a Franchise for a perio...
	1.2 This Franchise grants Franchisee the right, privilege, and authority to construct, operate, maintain, replace, acquire, sell, lease, and use all necessary Facilities for a telecommunications network in, under, on, across, over, through, along or b...

	Section 2.   Authority Limited to Occupation of Public Rights-of-Way.
	2.1 The authority granted by this Franchise is a limited, non-exclusive authorization to occupy and use the City’s Rights-of-Way.  Such use must be in compliance with the Buckley Municipal Code provisions, including and not limited to Chapter 13.35. F...
	2.2 As described in Section 8, construction is not authorized without the appropriate permits, leases, easements, or approvals.  This Franchise does not and shall not convey any right to Franchisee to install its Facilities on, under, over, across, or...
	2.3 Under this Franchise, the Facilities shall not be used for Cable Services as that term is defined in 47 U.S.C. § 522(6).
	2.4 Franchisee shall have the right, without prior City approval, to offer or provide capacity or bandwidth to its customers consistent with this Franchise provided:
	(a) Franchisee at all times retains exclusive control over its telecommunications system, Facilities and Services and remains responsible for constructing, installing, and maintaining its Facilities pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Franchi...
	(b) Franchisee may not grant rights to any customer or lessee that are greater than any rights Franchisee has pursuant to this Franchise;
	(c) Such customer or lessee shall not be construed to be a third-party beneficiary under this Franchise; and
	(d) No such customer or lessee may use the telecommunications system or Services for any purpose not authorized by this Franchise.


	Section 3.   Non-Exclusive Franchise Grant.  This Franchise is granted upon the express condition that it shall not in any manner prevent the City from granting other or further franchises in, along, over, through, under, below, or across any Rights-o...
	Section 4.
	Section 4.  Location of Telecommunications Facilities.  Franchisee is maintaining a telecommunications network consisting of Facilities within the City.  Franchisee may locate its Facilities anywhere within the Franchise Area consistent with the City’...
	Section 5.   Relocation of Facilities.
	5.1 Franchisee agrees and covenants to protect, support, temporarily disconnect, relocate, or remove from any Rights-of-Way any of its Facilities when reasonably required by the City by reason of traffic conditions or public safety, dedications of new...
	5.2 Upon request of the City and in order to facilitate the design of City street and Right-of-Way improvements, Franchisee agrees, at its sole cost and expense, to locate, and if reasonably determined necessary by the City, to excavate and expose its...
	5.3 If the City determines that the project necessitates the relocation of Franchisee’s existing Facilities, the City shall:
	(a) At least forty five (45) days prior to commencing the project, provide Franchisee with written notice requiring such relocation; provided, however, that in the event of an emergency situation, defined for purposes of this Franchise as a condition ...
	(b) At least forty five (45) days prior to commencing the project, provide Franchisee with copies of pertinent portions of the plans and specifications for the improvement project and a proposed location for Franchisee’s Facilities so that Franchisee ...
	(c) After receipt of such notice and such plans and specifications, Franchisee shall complete relocation of its Facilities at least ten (10) days prior to commencement of the City’s project at no charge or expense to the City, except as otherwise prov...

	5.4 Franchisee may, after receipt of written notice requesting a relocation of its Facilities, submit to the City written alternatives to such relocation.  Such alternatives must be submitted to the City at least thirty (30) days prior to commencement...
	5.5 The provisions of this Section 5 shall in no manner preclude or restrict Franchisee from making any arrangements it may deem appropriate when responding to a request for relocation of its Facilities by any person or entity other than the City, whe...
	5.6 Franchisee will indemnify, hold harmless, and pay the costs of defending the City, in accordance with the provisions of Section 17, against any and all claims, suits, actions, damages, or liabilities for delays on City construction projects caused...
	5.7 Whenever any person shall have obtained permission from the City to use any Right-of-Way for the purpose of moving any building, Franchisee, upon thirty (30) days’ written notice from the City, shall raise, remove, or relocate to another part of t...
	5.8 If Franchisee fails, neglects, or refuses to remove or relocate its Facilities as directed by the City following the procedures outlined in Section 5.1 through Section 5.4 the City may perform such work or cause it to be done, and the City’s costs...
	5.9 The provisions of this Section 5 shall survive the expiration or termination of this Franchise during such time as Franchisee continues to have Facilities in the Rights-of-Way.

	Section 6.   Undergrounding of Facilities.
	6.1 Franchisee must place its Facilities underground except as otherwise expressly provided herein or in available City standards, or in areas where any other telecommunications or cable company has placed Facilities above ground.  Except as specifica...
	6.2 Whenever the City may require the undergrounding of the aerial utilities in any area of the City, Franchisee shall underground its aerial facilities in the manner specified by the City, concurrently with and in the area of the other affected utili...
	6.3 Within forty-eight (48) hours (excluding weekends and City-recognized holidays) following a request from the City, Franchisee shall locate underground Facilities by marking the location on the ground.  The location of the underground Facilities sh...
	6.4 Franchisee shall be entitled to reasonable access to open utility trenches, provided that such access does not interfere with the City’s placement of utilities or increase the City’s costs. Franchisee shall pay to the City the actual cost to the C...
	6.5 Franchisee shall not remove any underground cable or conduit that requires trenching or other opening of the Rights-of-Way along the extension of cable to be removed, except as provided in this Section 6.5. Franchisee may remove any underground ca...
	6.6 The provisions of this Section 6 shall survive the expiration, revocation, or termination of this Franchise during such time as Franchisee continues to have Facilities in the Rights-of-Way.  Nothing in this Section 6 shall be construed as requirin...

	Section 7.   Maps and Records.
	7.1 After construction is complete, Franchisee shall provide the City with accurate copies of as-built plans and maps in compliance with the Buckley Municipal Code Section 13.35.160.  These plans and maps shall be provided at no cost to the City, and ...
	7.2 Within thirty (30) days of a written request from the City, Franchisee shall furnish the City with information sufficient to demonstrate: 1) that Franchisee has complied with all applicable requirements of this Franchise; and 2) that all taxes, in...
	7.3 All books, records, maps, and other documents maintained by Franchisee with respect to its Facilities within the Rights-of-Way shall be made available for inspection by the City at reasonable times and intervals; provided, however, that nothing in...
	7.4 Franchisee shall not be required to disclose information that it reasonably deems to be proprietary or confidential in nature.  The City agrees to keep confidential any proprietary or confidential books or records to the extent permitted by law.  ...

	Section 8.   Work in the Rights-of-Way.
	8.1 During any period of relocation, construction or maintenance, all work performed by Franchisee or its contractors shall be accomplished in a safe and workmanlike manner, so as to minimize interference with the free passage of traffic and the free ...
	8.2 Unless not required by the Buckley Municipal Code, whenever Franchisee shall commence work in any public Rights-of-Way for the purpose of excavation, installation, construction, repair, maintenance, or relocation of its cable or equipment, it shal...
	8.3 If either the City or Franchisee shall at any time plan to make excavations in any area covered by this Franchise and as described in this Section 8.3, the party planning such excavation shall afford the other, upon receipt of a written request to...
	(a) Such joint use shall not unreasonably delay the work of the party causing the excavation to be made;
	(b) Such joint use shall be arranged and accomplished on terms and conditions satisfactory to both parties and in accordance with the applicable codes, rules and regulations; and
	(c) To the extent reasonably possible, the Franchisee shall, at the direction of the city, cooperate with the City and provide other franchisees with the opportunity to utilize joint or shared excavations in order to minimize disruption and damage to ...
	(d) Either party may deny such request for safety reasons.

	8.4 Except for emergency situations, Franchisee shall give at least seven (7) days’ prior notice of intended construction to residents in the affected area.  Such notice shall contain the dates, contact number, nature and location of the work to be pe...
	8.5 Franchisee may trim trees upon and overhanging on public ways, streets, alleys, sidewalks, and other public places of the City so as to prevent the branches of such trees from coming in contact with Franchisee’s Facilities.  The right to trim tree...
	8.6 Franchisee shall meet with the City and other franchise holders and users of the Rights-of-Way upon written notice as determined by the City, to schedule and coordinate construction in the Rights-of-Way.  All construction locations, activities, an...
	8.7 Franchisee acknowledges that it, and not the City, shall be responsible for compliance with all marking and lighting requirements of the Federal Aviation Administration (“FAA”) and the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”) with respect to Fran...
	8.8 The granting of this franchise shall not preclude the City, its accredited agents or its contractors, from blasting, grading or doing other necessary road work contiguous to the Franchisee’s improvements.  The City shall provide Franchisee with tw...

	Section 9.   One Call Locator Service
	Section 10.   Safety Requirements.
	10.1 Franchisee shall, at all times, employ professional care and shall install and maintain and use industry-standard methods for preventing failures and accidents that are likely to cause damage, injuries, or nuisances to the public.  All structures...
	10.2 If an unsafe condition or a violation of Section 10.1 is found to exist, and becomes known to the City, the City agrees to give Franchisee written notice of such condition and afford Franchisee a reasonable opportunity to repair the same.  If Fra...
	10.3 Additional safety standards include:
	(a) Franchisee shall endeavor to maintain all equipment lines and facilities in an orderly manner, including, but not limited to, the removal of all bundles of unused cable on any aerial facilities.
	(b) All installations of equipment, lines, and ancillary facilities shall be installed in accordance with industry-standard engineering practices and shall comply with all federal, State, and local regulations, ordinances, and laws.
	(c) Any opening or obstruction in the Rights-of-Way or other public places made by Franchisee in the course of its operations shall be protected by Franchisee at all times by the placement of adequate barriers, fences, or boarding, the bounds of which...
	(d) Franchisee shall permit material tests by the Public Works Director as further described in the Buckley Municipal Code Section 13.35.210.

	10.4 Unsafe Conditions and Nuisances in the Rights-of-Way.  Franchisee shall comply with any order issued by the Public Works Director or his/her designee regarding the correction or discontinuance of an unsafe, nonconforming or unauthorized condition...

	Section 11.   Work of Contractors and Subcontractors.  Franchisee’s contractors and subcontractors shall be licensed and bonded in accordance with State law and the City’s ordinances, regulations, and requirements.  Work by contractors and subcontract...
	Section 12.   City Conduit.  Except in emergency situations, Franchisee shall inform the Public Works Director with at least thirty (30) days’ advance written notice that it is constructing, relocating, or placing ducts or conduits in the Rights-of-Wa...
	Section 13.   Restoration after Construction.
	13.1 Franchisee shall, after installation, construction, relocation, maintenance, or repair of its Facilities, or after abandonment approved pursuant to Section 19, at Franchisee’s own cost and expense, promptly remove any obstructions from the Rights...
	13.2 Franchisee agrees to promptly complete all restoration work and to promptly repair any damage caused by work to the Franchise Area or other affected area at its sole cost and expense and according to the time and terms specified in the permits is...
	13.3 If conditions (e.g. weather) make the complete restoration required under Section 13 impracticable, Franchisee shall temporarily restore the affected Right-of-Way or property.  Such temporary restoration shall be at Franchisee’s sole cost and exp...
	13.4 In the event Franchisee does not repair a Right-of-Way or an improvement in or to a Right-of-Way within the time agreed to by the Public Works Director, or his/her designee, the City may repair the damage and shall be reimbursed its actual cost w...
	13.5 The provisions of this Section 13 shall survive the expiration or termination of this Franchise so long as Franchisee continues to have Facilities in the Rights-of-Way and has not completed all restoration to the City’s standards.

	Section 14.   Emergencies.
	14.1 In the event of any emergency in which any of Franchisee’s Facilities located in or under any street endangers the property, life, health, or safety of any person, entity or the City, or if Franchisee’s construction area is otherwise in such a co...
	14.2 Whenever the construction, installation, or excavation of Facilities authorized by this Franchise has caused or contributed to a condition that appears to substantially impair the lateral support of the adjoining street or public place, an adjoin...
	14.3 The City shall not be liable for any damage to or loss of Facilities within the Rights-of-Way as a result of or in connection with any public works, public improvements, construction, grading, excavation, filling, or work of any kind in the Right...

	Section 15.   Recovery of Costs.
	15.1 Franchisee shall pay a grant fee in an amount not to exceed Four Thousand Dollars ($4,000) for the City’s legal costs incurred in drafting and processing this Franchise and all work related thereto.  No construction permits shall be issued for th...
	15.2 In addition to Section 15.1, Franchisee shall promptly reimburse the City in accordance with the provisions of Section 15.3 and Section 15.4 for any and all costs the City reasonably incurs in response to any emergency situation involving Franchi...
	15.3 Franchisee shall reimburse the City within sixty (60) days of submittal by the City of an itemized billing for reasonably incurred costs, itemized by project, for Franchisee’s proportionate share of all actual, identified expenses incurred by the...
	15.4 The time of City employees shall be charged at their respective rate of salary, including overtime if applicable, plus benefits and reasonable overhead.  Any other costs will be billed proportionately on an actual cost basis.  All billings will b...

	Section 16.   Franchise Fees and Utility Taxes.
	16.1 Franchisee represents that its Services, as authorized under this Franchise, are a telephone business as defined in RCW 82.16.010, or that it is a service provider as used in RCW 35.21.860 and defined in RCW 35.99.010.  As a result, the City will...
	16.2 Franchisee acknowledges that its operation with the City constitutes a telecommunication business subject to the utility tax imposed pursuant to the Buckley City Code Chapter 3.96.  Franchisee stipulates and agrees that certain of its business ac...

	Section 17.   Indemnification.
	17.1 Franchisee releases, covenants not to bring suit, and agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, its officers, employees, agents, and representatives from any and all claims, costs, judgments, awards, or liability to any person, for...
	17.2 Inspection or acceptance by the City of any work performed by Franchisee at the time of completion of construction shall not be grounds for avoidance by Franchisee of any of its obligations under this Section 17.  These indemnification obligation...
	17.3 The City shall promptly notify Franchisee of any claim or suit and request in writing that Franchisee indemnify the City.  Franchisee may choose counsel to defend the City subject to this Section 17.3.  City’s failure to so notify and request ind...
	17.4 The parties acknowledge that this Franchise is subject to RCW 4.24.115.  Accordingly, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of Fr...
	17.5 Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Section 17, Franchisee assumes the risk of damage to its Facilities located in the Rights-of-Way and upon City-owned property from activities conducted by the City, its officers, agents, employees, vol...
	17.6 The provisions of this Section 17 shall survive the expiration, revocation, or termination of this Franchise.

	Section 18.   Insurance.
	18.1 Franchisee shall procure and maintain for so long as Franchisee has Facilities in the Rights-of-Way, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the exercise of rights, privil...
	(a) Automobile Liability insurance with limits no less than $2,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.
	(b) Commercial General Liability insurance, written on an occurrence basis with limits no less than $3,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence and $5,000,000 aggregate for personal injury, bodily injury and property damage. Coverage shall include...
	(c) Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of the State of Washington.  No deductible is presently required for this insurance; and
	(d) Umbrella liability policy with limits not less than $10,000,000 per occurrence and in the aggregate.

	18.2 Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City. Such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.  The City acknowledges that Franchisee’s current deductibles are subject to change based on busi...
	18.3 The insurance policies, with the exception of Workers’ Compensation obtained by Franchisee shall name the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers (“Additional Insureds”), as an additional insured with regard to activities...
	18.4 Franchisee is obligated to notify the City of any cancellation or intent not to renew any insurance policy, required pursuant to this Section 18, thirty (30) days prior to any such cancellation.  Within five (5) days prior to said cancellation or...
	18.5 Franchisee’s maintenance of insurance as required by this Section 18 shall not be construed to limit the liability of Franchisee to the coverage provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy available at law or ...

	Section 19.   Abandonment of Franchisee’s Telecommunications Network
	Section 20. .  Upon the expiration, termination, or revocation of the rights granted under this Franchise, Franchisee shall remove all of its Facilities from the Rights-of-Way within ninety (90) days of receiving written notice from the Public Works D...
	Section 20.   Bonds.
	20.1 Franchisee shall furnish a performance bond (“Performance Bond”) written by a corporate surety acceptable to the City equal to at least 150% of the estimated value of the work and the estimated cost to restore existing improvements as determined ...
	20.2 Franchisee shall furnish a two-year warranty bond (“Warranty Bond”), or other surety acceptable to the City, at the time of final acceptance of construction work on the Facilities within the Rights-of-Way.  The Warranty Bond amount will be equal ...
	20.3 Franchisee shall provide City with a bond in the amount of Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00) (“Franchise Bond”) running or renewable for the term of this Franchise, in a form and substance reasonably acceptable to City. In the event Franc...

	Section 21.   Remedies to Enforce Compliance.
	21.1 In addition to any other remedy provided in this Franchise, the City reserves the right to pursue any remedy available at law or in equity to compel or require Franchisee and/or its successors and assigns to comply with the terms of this Franchis...
	21.2 If either party violates or fails to comply with any of the provisions of this Franchise, or a permit issued as required by Section 8.2, or should it fail to heed or comply with any notice given to such party under the provisions of this Franchis...

	Section 22.   Revocation
	Section 23.   Non-Waiver
	Section 24.   Police Powers and City Regulations
	Section 25.   Cost of Publication
	Section 26.   Acceptance
	Section 27.   Survival
	Section 28.   Changes of Ownership or Control.
	28.1 This Franchise may not be directly or indirectly assigned, transferred, or disposed of by sale, lease, merger, consolidation or other act of Franchisee, by operation of law or otherwise, unless approved in writing by the City, which approval shal...
	28.2 Any transactions that singularly or collectively result in a change of more than fifty percent (50%) of the: ultimate ownership or working control of Franchisee, ownership or working control of the Facilities, ownership or working control of affi...
	28.3 Franchisee may, without prior consent from the City:  (i) lease the Facilities, or any portion, to another person; (ii) grant an indefeasible right of user interest in the Facilities, or any portion, to another person; or (iii) offer to provide c...

	Section 29.   Entire Agreement
	Section 30.   Eminent Domain
	Section 31.   Vacation
	Section 32.   Notice
	Section 33.   Severability
	Section 34.   Compliance with all Applicable Laws
	Section 35.   Attorney Fees
	Section 36.   Hazardous Substances
	Section 37.   Licenses, Fees and Taxes
	Section 38.   Miscellaneous.
	38.1 The City and Franchisee respectively represent that their respective signatories are duly authorized and have full right, power, and authority to execute this Franchise on such party’s behalf.
	38.2 This Franchise shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington.  The United States District Court for the Western District of Washington, and Pierce County Superior Court have proper venue for any dispute related to this...
	38.3 Section captions and headings are intended solely to facilitate the reading of this Franchise.  Such captions and headings shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of the text within this Franchise.
	38.4 Where the context so requires, the singular shall include the plural and the plural includes the singular.
	38.5 Franchisee shall be responsible for obtaining all other required approvals, authorizations, and agreements from any party or entity and it is acknowledged and agreed that the City is making no representation, warranty, or covenant whether any of ...
	38.6 This Franchise is subject to all applicable federal, State and local laws, regulations and orders of governmental agencies as amended, including but not limited to the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, the Telecommunications Act of 1996, as...
	38.7 There are no third party beneficiaries to this Franchise.
	38.8 This Franchise may be enforced at both law and in equity.

	Section 39.   Corrections by City Clerk or Code Reviser
	Section 40.   Effective Date
	Mayor Patricia Johnson
	Joanne Starr, City Clerk
	APPROVED AS TO FORM:
	James E. Haney, City Attorney
	EFFECTIVE:
	EXHIBIT A
	Page 1 of 2
	EXHIBIT A
	Page 2 of 2

	AI #3(b) - Astound Franchise - Discount offer for the City of Buckley (2nd)
	Agenda Bill 16-051 (Agreement - TSA Between Buckley & Carbonado for WWTP Lab Services)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	AI #4 - TSA Between Buckley  Carbonado for Lab Services (2016) final to Council
	B. Administration
	1. Each Party shall appoint a representative to manage the Project.  The name of each representative is provided in Exhibit One of this Agreement.
	C. Responsibilities
	D. Billing and Payment
	4. The Parties represent that funds for service provision under this Agreement have been appropriated and are available. To the extent that such service provision requires future appropriations beyond current appropriation authority, each of the Parti...
	E. Effectiveness and Duration
	3. This Agreement is not assignable by either Party, either in whole or in part.
	4. This Agreement is a complete expression of the intent of the Parties and any oral or written representations or understandings not incorporated herein are excluded.  The Parties recognize that time is of the essence in the performance of the provis...
	F. Indemnification

	G. Reporting obligation
	I. Counterparts
	This Agreement may be executed in counterparts.
	EXHIBIT ONE
	SCOPE OF WORK & BUDGET
	Project Purpose/Description

	Budget Estimate Table
	 For the purposes of this agreement, TSS tests run on both Influent and Effluent Samples collected on the same date, shall count for billing purposes as one test.
	 For the purposes of this agreement, BOD tests run on both Influent and Effluent Samples collected on the same date, shall count for billing purposes as one test.

	Agenda Bill 16-052 (Bid Award - Phase II of the SR410 Realignment Project)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	AI #5(a) - Memo Council (Phase II Realignment Project) Bid Award
	AI #5(b) - Review of Bids - Buckley Realignment Ph 2
	AI #5(c) - Bid Tab - Realignment Ph 2
	Agenda Bill 16-053 (Temporary Waiver of Trailer Regulations BMC 11.48.0303[1])
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	AI #6 - BMC 11.48 - Trailers
	Agenda Bill 16-054 (Nominate Candidate for Position Two of Zoo and Trek Authority Board)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	AI #7 - Zoo Trek Ballot Information (16)

	Packet #3
	Agenda Bill 16-055 (Lease Agreement Termination – Del’s Farm & Feed)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	AI #8(a) - Memo (Mayor & Council) Termination of Lease Agreement - Del's farm & Feed
	AI #8(b) -Tractor Supply Letter of Closure - Linda Hamilton
	AI #8(c) - LEASE AGREEMENT (Del's Farm Supply) - 2006 Executed
	D. CONSENT AGENDA
	City Council Minutes 3-22-2016
	City Council Minutes 4-5-2016 Study Session
	E. COMMITTEE REPORTS



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


	Agenda Home: 


